REGULAR MEETING
OF
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Monday, August 26, 2013
2:00 P.M.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not
on the agenda and within the Board’s jurisdiction. See “Notice to the Public”
below. Please make your comments from the podium once acknowledged by the
President of the Board.)

CONSENT AGENDA (All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be
routine and will be approved ot rejected in a single motion. Any item placed on
the Consent Agenda may be removed and placed on the Regular Agenda for
discussion and possible action upon the request of any Board Member.)
Action: Recommend Approval of Consent Agenda
a.  Minutes July 22, 2013 Regular Board Meeting and August 8, 2013 Special

" Board Meeting
b.  Investment of Funds

e Financial Reports

e Investment Reports
c.  Payment of Claims

FISCAL YEAR 2013-14 APPOINTMENTS OF CACHUMA OPERATION
AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

Action: Appointment by motion and vote of the Board for each appointment
a.  Appointment of ACWA/JPIA Representative and Alternate

b.  Appointment of Secretary of the Board

VERBAL REPORTS FROM BOARD COMMITTEES

Receive verbal information regarding the following committee meetings:
a. Opetations Committee meeting August 19, 2013



10.

11.

12.

FISH PASSAGE IMPROVEMENT ON CROSSING 1, QUIOTA CREEK

PROJECT

Action: Recommend Approval by Motion and Vote of the Board

a.  Reject all bids received for Construction of the Quiota Creek, Crossing 1
Project

b.  Authorize the General Manager to re-bid the Construction of the Quiota
Creek, Crossing 1 Project

ESTABLISHMENT OF A BOARD POLICY REGARDING THE
GENERAL MANAGER AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF
EXPENDITURES UP TO A MAXIMUM OF $10,000

Action: Recommend approval by motion and vote of the Board

AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE
ORDER FOR THE FABRICATION AND INSTALLATION OF THE
NORTH PORTAL ELEVATOR ENGINEERED INTERIM SOLUTION,
NOT TO EXCEED $15,000 (See Details in General Manager Report)
Action: Recommend approval by motion and vote of the Board

AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO RCB ELEVATOR
CONSULTING LLC FOR PHASE II REHABILITATION OF THE
NORTH PORTAL ELEVATOR, NOT TO EXCEED $25,150
Action: Recommend approval by motion and vote of the Board

GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT
Receive information from the General Manager on topics pertaining to

COMB, including but not limited to, the following:
& North Portal Elevator

= Crossing 1, Quiota Creek Project
= Emergency Action Plan

PROGRESS REPORT ON CACHUMA LAKE OAK TREE PROGRAM
Receive information regarding the Cachuma Lake OQak Tree Program

including but not limited to the following:
®=  Maintenance and Monitoring

ENGINEERING/OPERATIONS DIVISION REPORT

s Field Mapplet Software (Maintenance Management Software)
Presentation by Megan Emami

Receive information regarding Engineeting and Operations Division,

including but not limited to the following:

®  Cachuma Project Rehabilitation

#  Lake Cachuma Operations

a

a

US Bureau of Reclamation (USBR)
Operation and Maintenance Activities



13. FISHERIES DIVISION REPORT

Receive information regarding Fisheries Division, including but not limited
to the following:

= LSYR Steelhead Monitoring Elements
®  Trbutary Project Updates

"  Surcharge Water Accounting

s Reporting/Outreach/Training

4. MONTHLY CACHUMA PROJECT REPORTS
Receive information regarding the Cachuma Project, including but not

limited to the following:
a.  Cachuma Water Reports

b. Cachuma Reservoir Current Conditions

15. DIRECTORS’ REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT
MEETING

16. MEETING SCHEDULE
= September 23, 2013 at 2:00 P.M., COMB Office
= Board Packages Available on COMB Website
www.cachuma-board.org

17. COMB ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE TO PUBLIC

Posting of Agenda: This agenda was posted at COMB’s offices, located at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, California, 93105
and on COMB'’s website, in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2. The agenda contains a brief general description of
each item to be considered by the Governing Board. The Board reserves the right to modify the order in which agenda items are heard.
Copies of staff reports or other written docurnents relating to each item of business are on file at the COMB offices and are available for
public inspection during normal business hours. A person with a question concerning any of the agenda items may call COMB’s
General Manager at (805) 687-4011.

Written materials: In accordance with Government Code Section 54957.5, written materials relating to an item on this agenda which
are distributed to the Governing Board less than 72 hours (for a regular meeting) or 24 hours (for a special meceting) will be made
available for public inspection at the COMB offices during normal business hours. The written materials may also be posted on
COMB’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the scheduled meeting.

Public Comment: Any member of the public may address the Board on any subject within the jurisdiction of the Board that is not
scheduled for as an agenda item before the Board. The total time for this item will be limited by the President of the Board. The Board
is not responsible for the content or accuracy of statements made by members of the public. No action will be taken by the Board on
any Public Comment item.

Americans with Disabilities Act: in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to review
agenda materials or participate in this mecting, please contact the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board office at (805) 687-4011
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to enable the Board to make reasonable arrangements.

Note: If you challenge in court any of the Board’s decisions related to the listed agenda items you may be limited to raising only those
issues you or someone else raised at any public hearing described in this notice or in written correspondence to the Governing Board
prior to the public hearing,



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING
of the
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

held at
3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA
Monday, July 22,2013

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by President Lauren Hanson who
chaired the meeting. Those in attendance were:

Directors present:

Lauren Hanson Goleta Water District
Alonzo Orozco Carpinteria Valley Water District
Doug Morgan Montecito Water District
Dennis Beebe SYR Water Conservation District, ID No. 1
Dale Francisco City of Santa Barbara
Others present:
Janet Gingras Tony Trembley
Kevin Walsh Tim Robinson
Rebecea Bjork Charles Hamilton
Ruth Snodgrass Phil Walker
Matt Naftaly Adelle Capponi
Ryan Willard

2. Public Comment

Phil Walker made comments about the drought and the water level of Lake
Cachuma.

3. Consent Agenda
a. Minutes:
June 24, 2013 Regular Board Meeting and July 15, 2013 Special Board
Meeting

b. Investment Funds
Financial Report
Investment Report

c. Payment of Claims

Director Beebe moved to approve the consent agenda as presented, seconded by
Director Francisco, passed 7/0/0.

ltem # 3a
Page 1



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
July 22, 2013

4, Consider Approval of an Employment Agreement for General Manager

Included in the board packet for the Board’s consideration, was the draft
Employment Agreement between Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board and
Randall M. Ward as its General Manager. The agreement had been reviewed by
legal counsel and was ready for Board approval.

Director Beebe moved to approve the Employment Agreement with Randall M.
Ward as COMB’s General Manager, seconded by Director Morgan, passed 5/2/0,
Director Francisco voted no.

The Board thanked Janet Gingras for stepping up and doing an excellent job as
Interim General Manager.

5. Proposed Annual Resolutions

a. Resolution No. 563 Adopting an Annual Statement of Investment Policy

b. Resolution No. 564 Establishing a Supplemental Account Agreement for
Telephone Transfers

c. Resolution No. 565 Authorizing Signatories for Revolving Fund Account
at Union Bank (formerly Santa Barbara Bank & Trust)

d. Resolution No. 566 Authorizing Investment of Monies in the Local
Agency Investment Fund

e. Resolution No. 567 Establishing a Check Signing Policy for General Fund
Account for Payment of Claims

f. Resolution No. 568 Authorizing Signatories for General Fund Account at
Union Bank (formerly Santa Barbara Bank & Trust)

g Resolution No. 569 Establishing a Check Signing Policy for Cachuma
Project Trust Fund and Master Contract Renewal Fund Accounts for
Payment of Claims

h.  Resolution No. 570 Authorizing Signatories for Trust Fund and Renewal
Fund Accounts at Union Bank (formerly Santa Barbara Bank & Trust)

Included in the board packet were the annual resolutions regarding bank accounts
presented for the Board’s consideration. In July of each year, the Board holds its
annual organizational meeting. These resolutions equate to reaffirming a check
signing policy for established COMB bank accounts and authorizing signatories on
those accounts. Janet Gingras, Interim General Manager reported that the resolutions
presented at today’s Board meeting reflected the addition of “with an EFFECTIVE
date of August 1, 2013”; these would replace the resolutions that were in the board
packet.

Director Beebe moved to approve Resolutions 563 through 570, seconded by
Director Morgan.

Passed by a roll call vote:

Ayes: Beebe, Francisco, Morgan, Orozco, Hanson

Nayes: None

Abstain/Absent: None

ltem # 3a
Page 2



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
July 22,2013

6.

10.

Reports from Board Committees
a. Administrative Committee meeting July 8, 2013

President Hanson reported on the Administrative Committee meeting held July 8,
2013.

Interim General Manager Report

Janet Gingras, Interim General Manager, highlighted the report that was included in
the board packet.

Progress Report on Cachuma Lake Oak Tree Program

Tim Robinson highlighted the report that was included in the board packet.
Fisheries Division Report

Tim Robinson highlighted the report that was included in the board packet.
Monthly Cachuma Projeet Reports

a, Cachuma Water Reports
The monthly water reports for June were included in the board packet.

. b. Cachuma Reservoir Current Conditions

11.

12.

13.

The Lake Cachuma Daily Operations report through July 17, 2013 was included in
the board packet.

Directors’ Requests for Agenda Items for Next Meeting
There were no requests for agenda items for the next meeting.
[Closed Session]:

Conference with Legal Counsel: Anticipated Litigation
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956 9

(d)(2): one case [Montecito Water District, et al v. Price, Postel & Parma LLP et
al, Santa Barbara Superior Court Case No. 1384682]

Counsel Tony Trembley announced that the Board would adjourn into closed session
regarding Item #12 as stated in the agenda.

The Board entered closed session at 2:35 p.m.

Reconvene into Open Session [Government Code Section 54957.7]
Disclosure of actions taken in closed session, as applicable
[Government Code Section 54957.1]

The Board reconvened into open session at 3:28 p.m. on Item #12 and made the
following report of action taken in closed session:
ltem # 3a
Page 3



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
July 22,2013

In accordance to Government Code Section 54957.1, the Board has given

guidance to counsel with regard to the matter discussed.

14, Meeting Schedule

e The next regular Board meeting will be held August 26, 2013 at 2:00 p.m.

eThe Agendas and Board Packets are available on the COMB website,
www.cachuma-board.org

15. COMB Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:29 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Randall Ward, Secretary of the Board

APPROVED:

Lauren Hanson, President of the Board

ltem # 3a
Page 4



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING
of the
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
held at
3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA
Thursday, August 8, 2013

Note: This is a special meeting of the Governing Board called in accordance with Government
Code Section 54956. Other than the listed agenda items, no other business will be conducted by the
Governing Board.

1. Call to Order, Roll Call
The meeting was called to order at 3:02 p.m. by President Lauren Hanson, who chaired
the meeting. President Hanson welcomed and introduced Randall Ward, COMB’s new

General Manager. Those in attendance were:

Directors Present:

Lauren Hanson Goleta Water District

Dale Francisco City of Santa Barbara

Doug Morgan Montecito Water District

Alonzo Orozco Carpinteria Valley Water District
Dennis Beebe SYR Conservation Dist ID#1

Others present

Randall Ward Janet Gingras

Charles Hamilton Ruth Snodgrass

Kevin Walsh Tim Robinson

Joel Mulder Tony Trembley (via Phone)

2. Public Comment
There were no comments from the public.
3. Fish Passage Improvement on Crossing 1, Quiota Creek Project

Randall Ward, General Manager highlighted the project. Two grants have been
received for this project, California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) grant
($521,141) and California Wildlife Conservation Board (WCB) grant ($150,000). The
Notice to Proceed (NTP) from WCB has been received and the NTP from CDFW is
anticipated upon design approval by NMFS. A Non-Competitively Bid contract

ltem # 3a
Page 5



Board of Directors Special Meeting
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
August §, 2013

justification was included in the board packet for sole sourcing the arch system purchase
to ConTech. Mr. Ward also stated that the construction bid document has been
reviewed and approved by COMB’s legal counsel. A contractor will be selected
through a competitive bidding process, a blind evaluation will be conducted and then a
recommendation will be brought to the August 26, 2013 Board meeting. The County
Encroachment Permit fee needs to be paid prior to issuance of that permit.

a. Acceptance of Executed Grant Agreement from California Wildlife
Conservation Board
Director Francisco moved to accept the Wildlife Conservation Board (WCB)
executed grant agreement for $150,000 as written and approved by WCB for the
construction of the Quiota Creek Crossing 1 project in the fall 0£ 2013, seconded by
Director Morgan, passed 6/1/0, Director Beebe voted no.

b.Consider Approval for Purchase from ConTech Engineered Solutions, LLC of a
Bottomless Arch Culvert

Director Francisco moved to authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase
order for the prefabricated bottomless arched culvert from ConTech Engineered

Solutions, LLC for $179,978, seconded by Director Morgan, passed 6/1/0, Director
Beebe voted no.

c. Consider Approval of Payment of Fees to the County of Santa Barbara for the
Encroachment Permits

Director Francisco moved to authorize the General Manager to make the outstanding
payment for the Santa Barbara County Encroachment Permit fee for $19,445,
seconded by Director Orozco, passed 6/1/0, Director Beebe voted no.

4, COMB Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:19 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Randall Ward, Secretary of the Board

APPROVED:

Lauren Hanson, President of the Board

ltem # 3a
Page 6



8/18/2013

Accrual Basis Statement of Net Assets

As of July 31, 2013

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
TRUST FUNDS
1210 - WARREN ACT TRUST FUND
1220 - RENEWAL FUND
Total TRUST FUNDS

1050 - GENERAL FUND
1100 - REVOLVING FUND
Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1010 - PETTY CASH
1200 - LAIF
1303 - Bradbury SOD Act Assmnts Rec
1304 - Lauro Dam SOD Assesmnt Rec
1305 - ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE
1400 - PREPAID INSURANCE

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

1500 - VEHICLES

1505 - OFFICE FURN & EQUIPMENT

1510 - MOBILE OFFICES

1515 - FIELD EQUIPMENT

1525 - PAVING

1550 - ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1910 - LT Bradbury SOD Act Assess Rec
1920 - LT Lauro SOD Act Assess Rec
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

48,572.01
10,162.85

58,734.86

466,807.76
70,707.98

596,250.60

500.00
3,883.72
70,212.00
12,640.00
68.44
15,192.72
102,496.88

698,747.48

444,890.47
384,565.63
97,803.34
493,184.33
22,350.00
-1,199,075.89
243,717.88

5,487,041.07
981,823.00
6,468,864.07

7,411,329.43

ltem #3b
Page 1



8/19/2013

Accrual Basis Statement of Net Assets
As of July 31, 2013

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2200 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
Payroll-DepPrm Admin
Payroli-DepPrm FD
Payroli-DepPrm Ops
2550 - VACATION/SICK
2561 - BRADBURY DAM SOD ACT
2563 - LAURO DAM SOD ACT
2565 - ACCRUED INTEREST SOD ACT
2590 - DEFERRED REVENUE

Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
26802 - LT SOD Act Liability-Bradbury
2603 - LT SOD Act Liability - Lauro
2604 - OPEB LT Liability

Total Long Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
3801 - Retained Net Assets
Net Income

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

65,962.24

65,962.24

100.00
2.31
59.24
92,114.04
70,212.62
12,640.00
87.008.00
58,734.86

320,870.97

386,833.21

5,487,041.07
981,823.00
252,648.00

6,721,512.07

7,108,345.28

514,600.20
-211,616.05

302,984.15

7,411,328.43

ltem #3b
Page 2



1 ofeg

%0004 £Z1€ 000 €218 £Z1E 000
%0004 6 000 ¥ b6 YZY6 000
%0001 PL620'T 000 ¥1'620'2 vL'620'C 000
%0001 5786 000 €86 1886 000
%0001 8.°608 000 84508 92608 Q00
%000L 021’ 000 10528t L0STLL 000
%000t £T1e 000 £TiE £ele 000
%000} ezle 000 T eZle oo
%0'004 £T1E 000 Pt £Z'ie 000
%0°004 S8'608'Y 000 596508 SEE0R'Y 000
%000k 00'869' 000 00'885' tosest 200
%000} 928 000 26925 2£'928 000
%0001 89'LL0'E 000 89°LL0°E 99°1L0'E 00'0
%000} szt 000 se'LLz'L szt 000
%000} 2618 00'0 2619 2618 000
%0'00L €667 000 £6'67L'L £6'60LY 000
%0700k 94662 000 94652 9652 00
%0004 ob' 146 000 oF'ive 4% 000
%0001 98861 600 99961 99'961 000
%000} 18°18b'L 000 1311 16°48b'L 000
%0001 se'agy 000 SE'8ey se'esy 000
%0004 YOZLLT 000 POeIL'T YOZLL'T 000
%0004 $iLL0't 000 yLLO'L vy LL0 000
%0001 Z6°085'} 600 z5°085'L 26°085'+ 000
%0004 yLE02'8 000 pL'602'8 v1'602'8 600
%00 X 4] 000 000 100" 100
%0004 100 000 100 000 100
%0001 o 000 10°0- 100 00'0
%00 LOsY'ERY - O0'0ES'ERP'Y  BS'EE %0'0 LPE80'8SE'Z- OO'EZL'8SE'T 6SEE %00 00°20¥°§80°-  00°L0¥'SE0'Z 000
%00 LrosY'ErY'-  OD0ES'ERP'Y  BS'EE %0'0 LP680'85C'T-  OO'EZI'8SE'T 6GEE %0'0 00°20¥'680'2-  00'L0V'S80T 000
%00 Lreey'ShY'-  OD0ES'ERY'Y  65EE %00 1r680'85'2- OO'EZL'BSET  69'EE %00 00°20P'SRO'Z- 000’6802 000
%00 00°000°06" 00°000'06 000 000 %0'0 00°000°06~ 00°000°06 000
%00 00yl Les- 00° 471128 000 000 %00 00 L I2s- 00'ibi'1es 000
%00 00°000'051" 00000051 000 000 %0°0 00°000'054- 00°000'051 600
%000} [ 000 65°EE 85'€E 000
%00 0OZLE'ZYE 00°Z18'2re 000 000 %00 00°Zt8'ere- 00°ZL6'2HT 000
%00 00°656'91- 00°855'94 000 000 %00 00°685'91~ 00°'555°04 000
%0'0 00°ZZ6'TTY'e-  00'TTEEIY'E 000 %00 00'€ZL'85E'2- 00'681'85€2 000 %00 QO'6BL'PO0'L-  00'6BLPO0'L 000
wbpng jo s, 196png J0A0 § jefipng gLl wbpng oy, je6png a0 ¢ yefipng g1 ing Bpng o 9 Bpng JoA0 § Bpng gLIne
TYLOL suopuisdQ sopeysty

£402 unp-z102 Ainp - siemoy "sA jebpng
sainjipuadxgy pue SonUBASY JO JuslUd)LIS

pleog ssususjuiely g uopesadQ ewinyoE)

uonosdsy) . Yg-oLie
Bujdeospue - 2¢-0L1E
YIOAYRBHY - £-0)1¢

QUVA - L-0L1IE jBlOL

Bujduaspue - 84-011¢
Bureold - qi-plie
esusuaUiel - 1-0LiE
QHYA - 1-0LiE
ouNY1 - Bl

INNV N9 - 801€ [930L

ltem #3b
Page 3

HICAUISEN VD - 2-801C IR0l

uofioedsy) « YZ-80LE
HIOAYISHY VO - 28018
ANNY NZ1D + 80L¢

LSO HLEON - 20L¢ 1e30),

NOLLVLS TOHLINOD dN - T-201€ [j0L

Buposuibug - 12-201¢
asuBuBIUEY - BZ-L0LE
NOLLYLS TONINGD dN - 22018

HIMOL SHVINI &N - 1-L01E 010

Bupssuibug . 11-201€
BOURUNNCW - BE-L0LE
HIMOL INVINI SN - 1-201E
WLNOS HLHON - 20L€
Heg juspoy - 901¢
Yavos - §0ie
a0y dinb3 2 Yap - poLE
8d0 208 - coig
Suppeoy Je10) - ZOLE
8AUST UOREIBA - A-LOLE
BARD NS - S-HOLE
oaee’) ABpOH - H-10LE
ieetifug - 34018
SNOLLYHELO -~ HO8YT » 0018

TIOUAY B0l
Q458059
SSOID

TIOMAVd
ssusdxy

140U SE80ID
oo Jejo L

FNNIATY 000¢ 204

pung juenusnsg aowwtm _UNYIRD - §E0T
JURID ©AG0-1X WD 80N - LZOE
PIg SUCD MO-LX 2O BIOIND - 9208
BUIOIY JSaIsU} - 0LOE
pungd [eMmausy - L00E
10V UBLEM - 9008
{siuswssassy A0} 1eBpng WO - 100C
INNIAZY 000
swosn|

siseg BRIy
£4+/02/180
Wd ¥0p



z ofegd

%16 SL 9V Ive o0'Lvs'12e SZBLL'YL %36 SLIOVIve 00°'2v6'128 SZBLLYL 000 SNOILVHILO - OV - 00LE 2101
%00 00812 L6% 00’81z L6y 000 %0'0 00'8LZ L6V 00’812 L6Y 000 000 40410 - SNOLLVHEAO - MOV - 00i€ ¢~
%E'Q le'809's 00'60Z'2 £9'009 %E'B 1£°609'e- 00'602'2 £9°009 000 aseatpel 03 840 - 991E o
%E'8 08'652'82- 00°928'08 02'896'2 %E'] 08'652'82- 00'828'0E 028952 0o VoId 00 840 - 09i€ ~r
%L Z6'5LLee 00'6£0°06 80'616'9 %L 26'6HL'es 00'5€0'06 80'616'9 000 SHAd - §§1€ [
%9EL SZT'ZL8'694- 00°269'061 SLvel'sr %82} SZTZL8'694- 00°259'96% SLv8L'9Z 00°0 diog SIGHIOM B UHESH - 051 &= @
%0'C04 po'LyR't 000 voLvg't ve'ive‘l 000 HOVIY YRISINIGHYD « L4iE (0L m 0.
%0°00% 9 pR" 000 voLbe'L ¥9'Lp8'L 000 SHUNLONULS « L-L11E (08
%000+ 96'008 000 96908 S6'v08 000 BupesuwBug . h-211e
%0°004 89'9£0'} 000 85°920'4 89'980°L 000 souBUARN - BL-LLLE
STUNLONYLS - 1-LLiE
HOVIM VIHIINIdHYD - 2LiE
%0001 SE'ELL'E 000 SEELL'E SE'eLL2 000 HOVEY VL3109 - 9Li¢ (elot
%0004 28264 000 ezsk eezsL )] SHILIW TYHILYT - 2-oLig im0l
%0'00} zeZ61 0o zez6t 2826t 000 eoUBUGIULRY - BZ-0LLE |
SHILIW TVHILYD - T-8LIE
%0004 £0'L88' 000 £0'186'} £0'186'L 000 SRUNLONULS « 1-81Le 10i0L
%0001 £0'186'L 000 £0'186'L £0'L86'L 000 ooueusjuiel - R-gL1C
STUNLONYLS - 1-9b1e
HOVZY V13709 - §41E
%0°00% 09'92 000 09'82 09'92 000 VIMILNIGHYD - S11E 18101
%0004 08'92 000 09'92 09'9Z 00’0 HIOAYISHY - Z-5LIg IvI0L
%0'004 09'9Z 000 0892 09'9e 000 uopoadsul « UZ-§LIE
YIOAYISIY - T541E
VINILNIEYD - SHiE
%0'004 4 gkA% 000 [4: R kA4 42 %44 000 HALIW AMVANNOE - YiLe 0L
%0004 ze1zy 000 812y [4: k44 000 LINVA - b-pLig oL
%0°00L ¥8'ETL [e02Y] b8'eet ba'eCt 000 uonoadsyy - Yl-viie
%0'001 ob2ET 000 op'zee op'Zee 000 suofesadg - Ji-piie
%0004 8559 00’0 8559 8569 000 eouBuBUEY « B-PLIE
LMVA - piLe
YILIN AUVANNOS - Plie
%0°004 8128 000 8126 8126 000 VORLUO » CHE 1OL
%0'00} 8126 (s3] 8126 8126 000 HIOANISIY - Z-ELLE IBI0L
%0°00} 09'52 000 09's2 0992 a0 uopoedsyl - UZ-£1T
%0004 85°69 e} 8568 8663 000 suonesadQ - JZ-gLLE
HIOAYISIY - TC4iE
VOILYO - EbiE
%0004 £2'180' 000 £2'150'y £2'190y 000 CiRH43HS - 2iC 1MoL
%0004 £2'180' 000 £2'190"y £2'190'Y 00 TENNML - Z-24EE oL
%000+ 66'0z8'e 000 86'928'S 66'929'¢ oo usfoadsy) - YZ-Ziie
%0004 yZyey 000 yEVEY LeAc 0o Bujueeld - qz-Ziie
ISNNAL - 22
Q1AIHA3HS - ZLLE
%0'00} 142184 00’0 232104 [£:35:1%4 000 QUNAVT-OLig BI0L
%0004 pig 3 000 pia:-r4} LY'5TL 000 HIOAHISY » -0LEE [RI0L
198png o % ___3eBeng Jang § 196png oL ine 19Bpng j0 %  19Bpngaean § 1o8png spinr wBpng oY leBpnglesn ¢ wBpng gring
wiok suogesed)

sousYsi4
£10Z UnP-Z10Z Anp - senjoy ‘sa jabipng

sainjipuadXy pue SanuaAay JO JUSIAIE]S

Siseq erussy
pleog asugusjule g UolEISdQ BWINYIRD

£H0Z120
Wd vO:p



¢ oBugd

%E'L 9g'EsLgL- 00°088'51 yeo6L 000 %E'L 99'EG4'SL 00°05€'SH ye'961
%e'L 99'e51'S1- 00'05€'sH pEo8L 00’0 %E'L 99'ES4'Sh 00'08E'SH yE'964
%0'0 00°000'91~ 00°000'91L 000 000 %00 00°000°81~ 00°000'94 000
%0'0 00'000°'EL CO'000'EL 00 000 %00 00'000'e}~ 00'000'¢L 000
%00 00'000'€- 00°000'e 000 00'0 %0'0 00'000'€" 00°000'e 000
%' £9°040°09- 0000829 L8651 000 %Ly £90V0'09- 00°008'£9 186542
%L'G 002582 00°005'2 00'EvL 000 %S 002882 000082 oo'evi
%E'TH 00'196'5h 00°00€'2S 00'6EL'9 00'0 %671 001955 0000828 00'68L'S
%49 £9'22L 2 00'000'eL ieis 00’0 %L'9 £9°224'21- 00°000°CH L8248
%0'L LLozy'esy 00°'606'CES £8'88Y'LE 000 %0'L 11'02p'96 00'608'EES £8'88ap' L8
%0'L z1'668' 00'v22's 88'v9¢E 000 %0°L z1'658'h~ 00'p22's 88°v9E
%0'L 1090402 00°26€'22 £2'095°t o)) %0'L 10°9LL'08 00'2££'22 £€2°096'}
%Z'L 08'550°05" 00'898'€S 0zZI8'E 000 %L 08'650'05- 00°'896'SS 0TzLe'e
%p'6 shovbes 00'Z04'26 §5'659'8 000 %b'6 SPOvY'es- 0020426 $5'659'8
%00 00°026'cL- 000Z6'eL 000 000 %00 000Z8'EL- 00'oLe'st 000
%00 00°026'EL~ 00°0Z8'¢L 000 000 %00 00'0Z6'€L- 00°0Z6'eL 000
%90 00'200°EL- 00'0Z6'E1 0088 000 %p'0 00'ZoR'el- 00°026EL 0095
%Lz 000ES'EL- 00026'eL 00062 000 %1'C 00'0E9'E}L- 00°0za'el 0006
%8'0 00'p0R'EL- 00'0Z8°eL 009t 000 %80 0OpOR'EL- 00°0Z6°¢L 008t
%00 00°026'CL- 00'026'CL 000 000 %00 00°0Z6'EL- 00°0Z6'S4 000
%0001 16T 000 1619Y'2 000 1612
%L 28900V 20 00°668'92 09'28L's 000 %S4 28°940'V 4 00'658'92 842825
%L 8p56L'18 00°Zya'ys 2eOv0'L 000 %YL 8ye6L L8 00286 2G°OV0'L
%6'9 02'208'46" 00°250'504 08'vse'L 00'0 %69 02'208'16~ 00°/50'50L 08'yse'L
%L LoGEY' T 00°000'aY BEVES'E %L'L 13044 00°000'0Y 6E'POS'E 000
%e'ot 000ISZT 00°000'e 0006y %E'9} 0070152 00°000'e op'esy 000
%hTh 080802~ 00°000°8 0’696 %L2Y 09°080'2 00°000'8 0v'696 0o
%y 00'8€8°e" 00°000'y 0029t %ty 00°9E8'e" 00°000y 00'204 000
%S'L 2.'8¥8'81- 00°000'81L ZTese’t %S'L 8.°8v9'gL- 0000081 ZTESE't 000
%00 00000’ 00'000'S 000 %0'0 00°000'9 00°000'8 000 000
%8 £Z0LY'Y 00'600'2 L0685 %Y'8 €20’y 00°000°2 22685 00'0
%8'L 195926t 00°000'05 £EVEL %5'L 196926V 00°000°05 ECVEL 000
%0°0 00°000°04 00°000°04 000 %0'0 00°000°04- 0000004 000 000
%E'L y0'L08'YL- 00°000'SL 96'864 %el $0'108'1- 00°000'S1 96'861 000
%42 £O'veb'ye- 00°000'6Z LEGES %z £9VO've 00'000'ST IE'SES 00'0
(344 Liege’se- 00°000°09 681592 %Yy LL'gee' 4S5 00°000'09 68'199°C 000
%00 0000004~ 00°000°04 000 %00 00°000'04~ 00°000°0L 000 000
%0°0 00°000°04- 00°000°04 000 %00 00°000°04" 00°000°04 00'0 00°0
%6 LLEZ0'EL 00°000°0Z 6996 %8y VLEZO'SL 00°000'02 68'046 000
%b8 00'GLE'8L 00°000°02 00'589't %b'8 00SLE'SL- 00'000°0Z 00'688'L 000
%Sy 19°26v'25" 00°000'5S 612052 %5 18°LBY'2S" 0000068 8L205'C 000
%G'L 99°928Y- 00°000'S yeese %S'L 99'929'r 00°000°s YE'ELE 000
%8'Z4 PE2eeY- 00°000'S 99489 %8ZL PEZOCY 00°000°'S 99'£€9 000
%0'0 00°000'G4- 0000051 000 %0'0 00°000°5 L~ 00°000°64 000 000
%0'S 18'806'82" 00°000'08 61°18b'L %0'S 18'805'8e" 00°000'08 61160} 000
jebpng jo e iefpnglean § Bpng gLing ofpng j0 % 198png 10A0 § jebpng gLinr 198png J0 % Bpng 190 § Jebpng £Line
V104 suopeiedQ sapaysid

€10z unp-z10z Aing - siemoy sa jebpng

sainjipuadxs] pue SanNuU3ASY JO Jusuislels
pieog soususjuiel @ UoneiadQ BWINYdRD

SHRIFHSIH - STSNAJIXT HIFHLO - 005
"AHSI - STIINS/STVINBLYI - 00EY nﬂow

SNOBUR{IBISIN » 0BEY ()
STINIHSI - SIIINSISTYINALYM - 0083

SIMAHSIA - VOBV LOVHINOD - 022y nﬁchm
souruBIUlE S)o0foid YSId - ZZZY .m.v..
SOAIRA R SO - LTTY

SANMIHSI - YOAYT LOVHLNOD - 0z

SIANFHSIL - dINDA 7 SATIHIA - 0027 1B30L

BNOaUBBISIN - 0BTV

lejidesy paxid - 082y

8334 dinbayeloiuaA -« 042y
SRIYIHSI - dINDI ¥ SITOHIA - 002V

SHHIHSH - HO8Y1- 00LY (BI0L

aidipal 00 ad - £51Y
YOId 00 04 - 25IY
SY3d a4 - 15by
OM B UieRH O - 05LY
-opiy [BUOSRAS - GLLY
aply jpuoseas . gLiy
8 - 8pIV [eUOSBAS - ALY
¥ - 9Pl [RUOSEIS - §LLY
MY - IPIY [BUOSROS - GLIY
Of - 9plY [BUOSROS - pLLY
weiboid asiy ¥BO - POLY
1sifojoig « £OLY
ys180j01g Jeofoid - Z0LY
1S1IUBI0S DUUNOSAY JOJUBS « LOLY
SAMIHSIH - YOavT - 00Ip
SISNHADXT HIHLO - 00SE 19101
Gujuply, - 90se
SNOSURHOUSIN - GNST
$30{AI85 JOUIO P VSN - POSE
SUORBIIUNUIWODY - £08E
SULIGHUN - 2080
SO - LOSE
SHSNIXT YIHLO - 008E

SAGANS ¥ SIVIHILVI - 00¥E 1oL

SIOAIES9M - SOVE

sproy ¢ sBuipjing - Zove

2SHA 9 BAIBA UBIEl ‘UNPUCD - LOVE
S3MdNS 2 SIVIHNILYW - coPE
HOAYT LOVHLINGD - B0£E 18101

sosiaieg oSty ‘Bupssuibuy - voge

SHOAIGSIY « £OLE

speoy ¢ sBulpiing . Z0gg

38y °g DARA 0jaW HNpUOD - 102
YOFYT LOVHINGD - 00LE

ANFWAIND3A B H3A 002¢ (B30L

SROAUB}BISIYN - $OZE
fejuay juawdinbg - soze
{eyjdeD paxid - Zoze
ooy dinbIedeA - L0ZE
ANSWGINDS 2 HIA 0022

Page 5

sisvg {RNIOdY
£1/02/80
Wd yoip



¢ afled

%E'L YO'EES'SE- 00'zeL'sz 9e'Br9'L 000 %eL POEES6L- 00Z8L'LZ oe'grs’L
%00 00'568'+2" 00'585'12 000 000 %0'0 00°665'12- 00°665'12 00'0
%0°0 Qo00g'e- 000089 000 00°0 %0'0 00°008's 00°008'9 000
%48 9e'BE" L 00'005'4 poizL 000 %18 9E'BLE" - 00°005"4 [ REAN
%0'¢ v0'662'e- 000052 86'002 000 %0'8 $0'662'2- 00°005'2 96°00C
%6y 06'056- 00°000't otBr 00°0 %6V 06056~ 00°000'L oLsy
%06 or2av's- 00°000'9 09285 000 %0'6 or'zer's- 000009 09165
%84 S8'PSY'Z 000052 1514 000 %81 S'YEY'2- 00005'T si'sh
%6 692818 00°000'6 128 000 %L'6 89°421'8" 00°000'6 1eZL8
%0'0 00°000'% 00000 000 00’0 %0'0 00'000'- 00000y 000
%00 00°006'2 000062 000 000 %00 00°006'2- 00°006'2 000
%00 $9IVE'S 00'erZ's 980 000 %00 YO'EVZ'S 00'er2's 9e'0
%8'8lL S8rEEE 00508y s1L8 000 %8'8l Seb6b'e~ 00'508'y 51018
%5'9 00°2EY'S" 0ooLe's 00'8Le 000 %G8 00Zer's- 00'018%s 00'8.8
%g'L Lieee'h 00'812's 62'66€ 000 %g'L L2228 00'812's 62'56€
%S'E 96'LEL'Y 00'008'y pO'2LL 000 %G'E 96 LTLY 00008y YOZLL
%58 68°2p8'6L- 00'10L'12 14E58's 000 %S9 88°L¥8'6L- 00°10L'42 14856't
L8 9E"L62'5E" 00°9v9'8E vo'sre'e 000 %8 9€'L62'5E" oo'gya'ee YOBYE'E
%0'0 00°000'52" 0000052 000 000 %0°0 00°000°52" 00°000'62 000
%09 L0°6v2'2- 00'88E'C £6°EPE 00’0 %08 0852 00'686'2 £6'ERL
%00 00°000'e9" 00°000'e8 000 000 %00 00'000'¢9- 00°000'e9 000
%8'L 2Lzes'8l 00'684'0Z 92086t 000 %82 zL285'8 00'E9L'0Z 82085t
%0'8 8G'¥65'6- oooleol Zr'5L8 000 %09 85'¥65'6- 00'0LZ'0L Zy's19
%0'S 9Z'105°08" 00'GL1'ZE vLELS'L 00°0 %0'S 9T’ L05'08 00'sLLZE PLELD'L
%g'L 8L LY 00129y 85'26Y'E 000 %8'L 8LV 00°'129'vY 85'26%'C
%Ly Z0'v80'66.- 00'906'828 86'428'68 %Ly 20'¥80'664" 00°506'8£8 86°128'68 000
%922 0LvLs- 00°000'4 06'622 %9EZ oLpLL- 00'000'4 06522 000
%L'84 6L°929'4- 00°000'2 Lzele %84 6L929'l- 00°000'2 [FA1 000
%Ly S1'9Le't- 000002 S8'E8 %2y SL9L6'L- 00°000'2 S8'es 000
%LE 66'P00'GL- 00'528'04 100294 %L6 66'700'51- 00'629'94 10028} 000
%00 00000 00000y oo %0'0 000007 00000y 000 000
%0'0 o'sey'e 00'52y's 000 %00 ooy’ 00'52y'9 000 0o
%0'0 yE9eL'6 00'.8L'6 g0 %00 pE'OEL'S 00°2eL'8 990 00°0
%48} 08°056's 00'566'L oTeY'L %igl 08°055'9 00'666'L oTyeY'E 000
%0'C 00'58b 0L 0006L°0L 00’628 %0E CO'GOP' 0L~ 00'062°04 00528 00°0
%YL 88'956°'s 00'169'6 ZLYEL %9'2 88'956'8- 00’1696 TVYeEL 000
%Y'E 21608 000046 £9°L0E %p'E LzeL'e 000046 £8°408 000
%8'2 9.'842'88~ 00'868'6¢ y2'190'e %82 9.'942'98- 00°8EL'6€ y2'190'e 000
%58 05°098'98~ 00'Zoe'oy 05 Ibb'e %5'8 05088'ge~ 00°20€°0Y 05'Ipb'e 000
%8'L 8L2L5'pe" 00'LbyLE 20've6'2 %8'2 8LZIe've" U LpY'iE ZYE6T 000
%8 ZL'165'69- 00°0LL" L 88'812'9 %28 ZLSS'sY 00°0LL'HL 898129 000
%00 00°000'L44- 00°000°241 000 %0'0 0000021~ 00°000'24L 000 000
%0'8 69'294' 00'SEY'y 18492 %09 697291y 0'SER'Y 29174 000
%09 1102841 00'€96'81 x4 % %09 L1078 L 00'€96'8} [:¥21 0o
%0'S £2°5r9'95- 00'2vs'es 24'986'2 %0'S £2'5v9'95- 00'2v9'6S 10988 00’0
%92 08'989'Y9L- ao'tyz'ast 0z¥Es'el %9, 08'989'v9L- 00'4pZ'8LY 0Z'PeS'EL 000
%00 00'50L'2r 00's0L'ey 00°0 %00 00’502 00'504'2y 000 000
%00 00°000'62- 00000'sZ 000 %00 00°000'62~ 00°000'62 000 000
%00 00004 L 000044 000 %00 000044~ 0000L'LE 000 00'0
%0'0 00°000°001" 00°000°00% 000 %00 00°000'001~ 00°000'004 000 000
%b'e LPOLE'L b 00°000°eL 65680t %¥'8 LpOL6 L1 00°000'eE 66'680'Y 000
%46 08'100'0L- 00°000'H Ov'866 %1'6 09°100°0b- 00°000°41 ov'ess 000
%9 19'808't- 00'000'e {7 %8y 18'806"4- 00°000'2 6116 000
%00 00°005'2- 00°008'2 000 a0 %0°0 00°005'2 00°005'2 0o
%00 00'005'2 00°005'2 os'o 000 %0 00°008'2- 00°005'C [l 0]
wfpng oy, 196png 1oAn ¢ 1eBpng gL e wfpng oy, 1eBpngiosn § 186png gring wbpngjo%  wlpngieaQs efipng grior
VLOL suopeiedQ sayels])d

£10Z unp-z1L0z Ainp - stenjoy 'sa jeBpng
salnjipuadXg pue SaNUSASY JO juswialels

pleog saurusjulRl 9 uopeledo Bwnyses

UBDIUYDB L SBANOSIY JOIEA - 05PS
suj Apedosd 2 qeit - erve

PNY - LS

uopeuLoju] 3jiqid « LEVS

1oARl] - 0P8

afiesjiy so30anQ » LZG

$094 1030831(] - 92V8
uopdussgnguopeInpy sakojduzy - §2rs
juggnsuosn .ESQEOO < gLbe
SJOSSY PaXid UUPY - 9LPT

sanq diysiequiely - v

S30HBN - PLPS

SUORRIIUNURLGY - SLb5

asusdxy UPIPY DS - ZIYS
sesea 7 jueludinbs eoO - L1vS
safjddng 010 / oBieisod - 0LYS
JURISISSY GARRNSILILIDY . 50PS
1oBBUBIW GARBIISIURUPY - BOVS

ad - jebo - Lobs

eisQy Avedwog - gove

Kefes WO - s0vS

Aiejeioog LWIPY - bObS

edl4 Auedwos - cops

SHILWD - TOvS

‘diioD SIOIOM B UIROH - JO¥S
STIYAHSH - NIWAY '8 TYHINID - 00VS

FALLYULSININGY B TVHINGD - 666Y j0i0)

uogewLIoj] SHand - 1888
SBOUBIDJUOD/IOARL] UILIPY » 02
suopdussqng/Buiuiesy, dwg - §2es
juRjinsuon Jandwos - gles
$}9S8Y Poxid UUWIPY - 91£9

sang diysiequioy - g1¢8

SORihN - PICS

SUOHRIIUNWILLGY « £1£8
sasusdxgy UlRIpY 2SN « ZLES
sasga-ydinbg 8010 - 118§

dx3 eoijo/ebeisod - 01€5
UROIULOD ] SOINOSOY JOIBA - LOEY
JUBISISSY BARRNBIMIIDY - GOCS
A1pjoloag sARRSUIINLIDY « POCS
laBuuely sARRRSILILPY - L0CS
Aigjeg Jobeuey - 008§

uwpy 3UVON Auedwog . gozg
upLPY wold Auedwod - 0925
SY3Ad -+ 0529

o) KIGHION B BOH - 1028
soumInsL} Aliqer - 0028

xuj, juswhojdseur) - 0415

HPOY - L-LOLS

12627 . poLg

8054 J010031Q - 0005 1B)0L

13410 - S804 J0)98IIC - 000G
aBueliy 1030040 - 4004
8894 J03381{Q « 0005
HALLYHLSININGY 2 TVU3INID - 6661
SINTHS! - SISNIdNT ¥WIHLO - 005P 2101

sulcpun - Zogy

Item #3b
Page 6

s|seg {BRidoy
¢Hozigo
Hd voiy



g abeg

6L'688's8"

%0001 20°918'112- 600 20°819°412- %0004 £2'9LZ'9z)- 00°0 £2°942'921° %000k 81°66£'58" 00°0

%8y 6C088' €T 0OCES'ShY'Y [1:3:12- 4Rk %b'G gLel'leg’s- O0'EZL'sse’T 2esoe’szt %ib 1290°000'7-  00'/0p'e80'C 6l'6es'sR

%20 00°980'L¥8" 00°000'er8 00'v08'L 000 %20 00°960' 4 ¥~ 00°000°EV8 00'¥08'+
%20 00'060°892° 00°000'0LL 00'p08'L 000 %Z0 00'960'892" 00°000°0LL 0U'v06't
%00 00°000'64~ 00°000°04 000 000 %00 00'000°0L~ 00°000°0L 000
%00 00°000' 60'000°¢ 000 000 %00 00'000'¢- 00°000'¢ 000

%Z'e 2 188'vTE- 00°000'6vC 8524102 000 %28 2y 188'vee- 00°000'6Ye 8geLL'0e
%00 00°000's" 00°000'S 000 000 %0'0 00°000'S- 000006 000
%Y'0 SE'B06'¥2" 00'000'62 5906 000 %Yo GE'B06'YT- 00°000'52 5906
%00 00°000'6~ 00°000's 000 000 %0'0 00'000'S- 000005 000
%Lve 05'295'85~ 00°000°6L 05°285'84 00 %L VT 05°Z9p'95- 00'000'52 05'285'81
%00 00°000°04- 00°000'GL 000 000 %00 00°000°04~ 00°000°04 000
%00 0000004~ 00°000'0L 000 000 %00 00'000'04- 00°000°0L 000
%8'bi 5618’8 00°000°0L 4t 000 %8'rE 5518'9- 00°000'04 eryerl
%0'0 00°000'60L~ 00°000'$04 000 000 %00 00'000°60L~ 00'000'504 000

%50 0Z'yE0'sLy 0002218y 08'5v2'2 %S0 0Th20'6L0 00'0L2'1 8y 08T 000
%00 00°000'008" 00'000°008 000 %00 00°000°008~ 00'000°00€ 00’0 00'0
%00 00°000°04- 00°000°0% [slX4] %00 00°000°01~ 00°'000°0¢ 000 000
%6'ch 19°z19's- 00'000°04 61°288'L %EEL 19Z19'e- 00°000°0L 61°286" 00°0
%0'0 00°042' 114" 00'042' 4L 000 %00 00'0LZ LEL” 000424 000 000
%EY 8E'LPLGL- 00°000'02 19'858 %E'¥ BEIVLEL- 00°000'02 19'858 00’0
%00 00'000°0E" 00°000°08 000 %00 00°000'08- 00°000°0€ 000 000

%0'0 00°000'5- 00°000's 000 %00 00°000'5- 00°000'6 000 00'0

L 72:34 PE'EY6'EVE- 00'8v8'19e 99'8/8'LL 000 %6'v PE'696'EVE" 00'6p8'198 99'8.8'41

yeBpng o % _ 186pnglean § jobpng gL ing wbpngyoy  jefpnglean § Bpng gL o0 wipngjo e  jebpngiean § jolipng gLinr
WLOL suoesado sepoysly

£10Z unr-z402 Ainr - sjenjoy ‘sajebpng

sainjipuadxs pue sanuaAsy Jo jJuswalels
pieog esususjuiey ¥ UofesadQ ewnyosed

item #3b
Page 7

swosu joN

asuadx3g g0y,

INSWIONVHNE LVLIBVH « 00£8 (€101

1 Bujssou) ol wjoid) - 6089

50 - subisoq BupssuiBug - p0Ls

poddng siosfosd Amnaul - 088
ANFWIONVHNI LYLIEVH - 0089

SALIANLLOV S3RITHSI - 0028 oL

88[) |oPOY BIBAMOARY HAS - 1129
:..Emo‘i uoRrIoISoY ) Hel - L0T9
Bugpun weey ysid A4UnoD BL - 5028
weibold sbnes wesng SOSN - 5029

yoddng feojuioa) ABoIOIPAH HAS - ¥0ZS
uedtdng jesjuyony, SIS - £0Z8
Buiddeyw pue S0 - 2029
uopmuswieiduy diNd - 1029

SILIALLOY SIRTHSIS - 0029

SLD3r0Ud WIDAdS - 0008 1#i0L
qeysy JoeARLH [BHOd YMON - L0L9
wieifold Juswsbruey MOY - 5018
Buiddepy pue §I9 - £609
uopENigRYRY BINIONAS DS - 8608
Buipiing 85430 BNOD - 0608
Yavos - 2509

SLDErOUd WIS - 0009

ug|d 38 1012 By pajeball - 0199

STNHIHSI - NINQY 2 TVHINIO - 00¥4 I®30L

siseg {eniooy
£LI0Zi80
Wd yo'p



LAIF Regular Monthly Statement hitps://laifins.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx

Local Agency Investment Fund

P.O. Box 942809 o
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif
(916) 653-3001 August 01,2013

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

GENERAL MANAGER PMIA Avemge M()llﬂlly Yields
3301 LAUREL CANYON ROAD
SANTA BARBARA, CA 93105-2017

Tran Type Definitions July 2013
7/15/2013  7/12/2013  QRD 1403436 SYSTEM 2.36'
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 2.36 Beginning Balance: 3,881.36
Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 3,883.72

MEMO TO: Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Janet L. Gingras, Trez}surer/Auditor-Controller

SUBJECT: COMB INVESTMENT POLICY

p——

The above statement of investment activity for the month of %&%_, 2013, complies with legal
requirements for investment policy of government agencies, 1073. Y hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all Union Bank investments of this agency for the period indicated.

T];;‘y{{surer/AudéorCcﬁ{troller

Item #3b
Page 8



UnionBank STATEMENT Page 1 of 1

OF ACCOUNTS CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANC H
UNION BANK Statement Number: 0102335072
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CENTRAL COAST 0986 &6/29/13.7/31/13
PO BOX 513840
LOS ANGELES CA 90051-3848 : —
Customer Inquiries R
800.798-6466 J—
Thank you for banking with us
since 1982
CY30 MZ 0 B 0000 0093959-121661 350110
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
MASTER CONTRACT RENEWAL FUND :
3301 LAUREL CANYON RD
SANTA BARBARA CA 93105-2017
BUSINESS ESSENTIALS INTEREST CHK SUMMARY B
Days in slalement period: 33
Beginning balance on 6/29 $ 10,174.79  Interest
To;scd Creglifs ance on 6/ 0.46 Paid this period $ 0.46
Other crediis and adjusiments { 1} 0.46 Paid year-lo-date $ 13.83
Total Debits ‘ -12.40  Interest Rates .
Other debils, fees and adjusiments { 1) -12.40 6/29/137/31/13 0.05%
Ending Balance on 7/31 $ 10,162.85
CREDITS
Other credits and adjustments
Date Description Reference Amount )
7/31  INTEREST PAYMENT $ 0.46™~"
DEBITS
Other debits, fees and adjustments
Date Description Reference Amount )
7/25 ANALYSISDEFICT  JUN2013 90252741 § 12:40-"
DAiLY LEDGER BALANCE
: Date tedger Balonce  Dote ledger Balonce  Date Ledger Bolance .
6/297/24 $ 10,17479 7/257/30 $ 10,162.39 7/31 $ 10,162.85 -~

MEMO TO: Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Janet L. Gingras, Treasurer/Auditor-Controller

SUBJECT: COMB INVESTMENT POLICY

The above statement of investment activity for the month of %;, 2013, complies with legal
requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. Thereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all Union Bank investments of this agency for the period indicated.

-

T}/asurer/Aud{ior—Cd/Atmller tem #3b

Page 9



UnionBank STATEMENT Page 1 of 1

OF ACCOUNTS CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANC H
UNION BANK Statement Number: 0102335080
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CENTRAL COAST 0986 6/29/13-7/31/13
PO BOX 513840
LOS ANGELES CA 90051-3840 [E—
Customer Inquiries J—
800-798-6466
Thank you for banking with us
since 1982
CY30 MZ O B 0000 00939460-121662 350110
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
CACHUMA PROJECT TRUST FUND -
3301 LAUREL CANYON RD _
SANTA BARBARA CA 93105-2017
BUSINESS MONEYMARKET ACCOUNT SUMMARY
Days in stalement period: 33
Beginning balance on 6/29 $ 28,657.92 [Interest
Total Credits 19,914.09 Pafd this period $ 5.09
Deposits { 1) . o 19,909.00 Paid yeardo-doie $ 34.44
Other credils and adjustments | 1} 5.09 Interest Rates .
Total Debits 0.00 ©/29/137/31/13 015%
Ending Balance on 7/31 $ 48,572.01
CREDITS
Deposits
including check Date Descriplion Reference Amount
and cash credits 7/17  OFFICE DEPOSIT 77894594 §$ 19,909.00
Other credits and adjustments
Date Descriplion Refsrence Amount
7/31  INTEREST PAYMENT $ 5.09 ¢
DAILY LEDGER BALANCE
Date Lledger Balance  Daote ledger Balonce  Dote Ledger Bolance
6/297/16 $ 28,657.92 7/17.7/30 $ 48,566.92 7/31 $ 48,572.01

MEMO TO: Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Janet L. Gingras, Treasurer/Auditor-Controller
SUBJECT: COMB INVESTMENT POLICY
The above statement of investment activity for the month of %7_, 2013, complies with legal

requirements for investment policy of government agencies, 1073.4 hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all Union Bank investments of this agency for the period indicated.

Y/ ;
Traﬁurer/Audl{or Cé/ntroller ltem #3b

Page 10



9:35 AM

comb2
osnens Payment of Claims
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2013
Date Num Name Memo Amount
1050 - GENERAL FUND

07/1512013 21970 ACWA-Joint Powers Insurance Authority ~ Workers Comp Program 4/1-6/30/13 -6,128.00
07/15/2013 21971 Alonzo Orozco Jun mtg fees -143.98
07/15/2013 21972 Aqua-Flo Supply Bushing/adapter/PVC -18.22
07M15/2013 21973 AT&T Jun statement ~421.07
07/162013 21974 C. Philip Brittain Install circuititimer for oxygen pump-Encantado ~720.00
07/15/2013 21975 Cardno ENTRIX BO Compliance task/supp/AMC-CC Participation-tech -5,495.57

supp/Fisheries monitoring program
07/15/2013 21876 CIO Solutions, LP Set up printers & copier for Ops -188.00
07/15/2013 21977 City of Santa-Barbara Refuse/recycle 5/30-6/27/13 -182.14
07/15/2013 21978 Coastal Copy, LP Mice agmis-copiers -321.40
07/15/2013 21979 Dale Francisco Jun mtg fees -132.68
07/15/2013 21980 Dennis E. Becbe Jun mig fees -160.04
07/15/2013 21981 Famcon Pipe & Supply Flap valves/nuts/bolts/gaskets/flanges -3,628.80
07/15/2013 21982 Fluidigm Corporation BioMark Dynamic Array chip-Genotyping -15,027.50
07/15/2013 21983 Frazee Paint Paint materials & supplies -47.54
071152013 21984 GE Capital Copier lease agmt -133.92
07/15/2013 21985 Grainger Round slingfjack chain PO#9214 -126.17
07/15/2013 21986 Harrison Hardware Ext cords/zip ties/plastic pails -233.75
07/15/2013 21987 Iraj Vatankhah Reimb-Grade D2 Dist ceriificate -60.00
07/15/2013 21988 J&C Services Office cleaning services 5/31, 6/7,14,24 -600.00
07/15/2013 21888 Joe Gonzalez Welding NP intake tower fish screens repair -10,081.00
07/15/2013 21980 Lauren W. Hanson Jun mig fees -133.65
07/16/2013 21991 MarBorg Industries Portable toilets-outlying stations -328.37
07/15/2013 21992 Milpas Rental Blower -219.39
07/15/2013 21993 Musick, Peeler & Garrett LLP General Counsel-May -10,211.80
07/15/2013 21994 Nextel Communications Cellular-Ops field crew/on-call -509.14
07/15/2013 21885 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Key battery for Highiander/adapters/jack -229.68
07/16/2013 21996 Orchard Commercial Services Tapehwet-dry vac filters/pressure washer -271.35
07/15/2013 21997 Paychex, Inc. 6/7,21 payroilitaxes/deliveries -293.40
07/15/2013 21998 PGRE NP/Tecolote tunnel -435.04
07/16/2013 21999 Praxair Distribution, Inc Cylinder rental-acetylene for welder -63.94
07/15/2013 22000 Premiere Global Services Conf. calls Jun -34.41
07/15/2013 22001 Prudential Overall Supply Mats/scrapers for offices -149.22
07/15/2013 22002 Quinn Company Annual load bank eval-Lauro yard/NP -2,251.84
07/16/12013 22003 RCB Elevator Consulting, LLC NP Elevator design/engineering services -6,550.00
07/15/2013 22004 Santa Ynez River Water Cons. Dist. ID#1  Stetson-BO/FMP Implementationftech supp/SYR -14,221.73

Hydrology support

Hanson Env-Review fisheries monitoring
07/15/2013 22005 Southern California Edison Main ofc/outlying stations -1,665.47
07/15/2013 22006 Specialty Tool, LTD Dry moly lube -54.43
07/15/2013 22007 Staples Contract and Commercial, inc. Office supplies -2,638.67
07/15/2013 22008 Tim Robinson Reimb-fuel containment vessel -107.99
07/15/2013 22009 Tri-Co Reprographics Copies-Quiota Crk Xng 1 -15.89
07/16/2013 22010 Verizon California Main ofc/outlying stations -417.54
07/15/2013 22011 Verizon Wireless Modems-Boundary & Ortega/Cellular-Eng & Fisheries -355.53
07/15/2013 22012 W. Douglas Morgan Jun mig fees -139.31
07/15/2013 22013 Wright Express Fleet Services Fleet fuel -2,088.31
07/15/2013 22014 Association of Ca Water Agencies/JPIA July & August coverage -46,055.28
07/15/2013 22015 Cashier, DPR QAC application & exam fee-Sept-Santa Maria (DF) -140.00
07/15/2013 22016 CIO Solutions, LP Mtce services-Maintain IT/Anti-spam & virus/MO ofc -2,492.32
07/15/2013 22017 COMB - Revolving Fund Jut 18 & Aug 2 payrolisitaxes -109,095.69
07/15/2013 22018 Cox Communications Business internet Jul -195.00
07/15/2013 22019 Culligan Water RO system Jul -24.95
07/15/2013 22020 Draganchuk Alarm Systems Alarm monitoring 7/1-9/30/13 -82.50
07/15/2013 22021 ECHO Communications Answering service -67.32
07/15/2013 22022 MGB Industrial Supply Parts for compressor -82.62
07/15/2013 22023 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LL  Postage meter lease 7/10-10/10/13 -443.89
07/15/2013 22024 Republic Elevator Co. Scheduled mtce-NP elevator -278.12
07/15/2013 22025 Southern California Edison Outlying stations -82.56
07/18/2013 22026 Underground Service Alert of So. Calif. New ticket charges-53 -79.50
07/15/2013 22027 Verizon California SCADA -505.17
07/15/2013 22028 COMB-Petty Cash Replenish petty cash -323.81
07/29/2013 22029 AMI Pipe and Supply, Inc. Confined space entry training PO#9218 -845.00

ltem # 3c

Page 1



9:35 AM

comb2
sriens Payment of Claims
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2013
Date Num Name Memo Amount
07/28/2013 22030 Business Card Oxygen loggers/calibration solution/mice suppiweb -8,096.08

hosting/satellite fee/Dist Cert Grade 3 prep/Sheffield
tunnel walk supplies

07/29/2013 22031 Calif Regional Wir Quality Control Board Additional amt for 401 cert fee-QC Xng 1 -203.00
07/28/2013 22032 GE Capital Copier lease agmt -355.32
07/29/2013 22033 Laser Cartridge Co. Cartridge recharge -151.19
07/29/2013 22034 Megan Emami Reimb-ESRI conf hotel/meals/travel -1,262.19
07/25/2013 22035 PGRE NP/Tecolote tunne! -372.52
07/29/2013 22036 Randall Ward Reimb-hotel -574.17
07/29/2013 22037 Scoit Engblom Reimb-aerators-fish rescues/batieries -156.25
07/29/2013 22038 The Gas Company Main ofc -1.02
07/28/2013 22039 Tim Robinson Reimb-ESRI conf hotel/imeals/trave! -1,359.43

Total 1050 - GENERAL FUND -260,682.78
TOTAL -260,682.78

ltem # 3¢
Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: August 26, 2013

Submitted by: | Randall Ward

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2013-14 Appointments of Positions to serve the
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board

SUMMARY:

Each year in July, the Board conducts the annual election of new officers and votes on appointed
positions to serve the Board for the upcoming fiscal year. Due to the August 1, 2013 start date of the new
General Manager, the following appointments were postponed until the August Board meeting.

These appoiniments will become effective immediately and will remain in effect until June 30, 2014. The
list below outlines the appointments to be considered at this time.

a. Appointment of ACWA/JPIA Representative and Alternate
Currently Doug Morgan

b. Appointment of Secretary of the Board

FISCAL IMPACTS:
N/A

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:
N/A

COMMITTEE STATUS:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:

The Board shall make each appointment by a motion and vote of the Board,

LIST OF EXHIBITS:
N/A




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
Operations Committee Meeting

3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Monday, August 19, 2013
1:00 p.m.

AGENDA

Call to Order

Public Comment (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not on

the agenda and within the Board’s jurisdiction)

RCB Elevator Consulting, LLC Proposal — North Portal Elevator Phase II

Adjournment

[This Agenda was Posted at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road,
Santa Barbara, CA. and Notices and Delivered in
Accordance with Section 54954.1 and .2 of the
Government Cade.]

ltem#5
Page 1



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: August 26, 2013

Submitted by: | Tim Robinson

Approved by: Randall Ward

SUBJECT: Quiota Creek Crossing 1 Fish Passage Improvement Project

SUMMARY:

A 60-foot prefabricated bottomless arched culvert with four wing walls and one rock riffle for grade-control
are planned to replace the current concrete low flow crossing at Quiota Creek Crossing 1. Pending final
design approval by the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and Santa Barbara County {County),
the project will begin in September and be completed in December of 2013. All funding for this project has
been secured from a California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) grant ($521,141), a grant from
the California Wildlife Conservation Board (WCB) ($150,000), and a COMB construction match ($560,000).
The Notice to Proceed (NTP) from WCB has been received and the NTP from CDFW is anticipated upon
design approval by NMFS. Final drawings have been submitted to NMFS and the County. With design
approval and payment of their Encroachment Permit Fee, the final County Encroachment Permit will be
issued. COMB's resident engineer has been approved by the County to be the project's resident
engineer. The temporary construction Right of Entry agreement from the landowner within the project
boundary has been received. The project requires separate Board approval for the prefabricated
bottomless arched culvert from construction and installation of the prefabricated structure. The Board
previously approved acquisition of the prefabricated structure on August 8, 2013.

COMB advertised the construction cost proposal on August 8, 2013, with bids due on August 20, 2013.
One site visit was required of a perspective bidder on one of two optional dates provided in the bid
request. Following the opening of the two bids received, the bids were reviewed independently by staff
representatives of the Montecito and Goleta Water Districts. That review concluded neither of the two
construction contract proposals met the criteria necessary for approval by the Board. The low bidder was
deemed unresponsive and the second bidder's proposed bid significantly exceeded the budgeted amount
available. Based on the foregoing, Staff recommends the Board reject all bids received and authorize the
General Manager to re-bid the Construction of Quiota Creek, Crossing 1 Project.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

A summary of the financial impacts from this construction contract as well as for the entire construction of
the project are provided in Table 1.

ltem #6

Page™




Table 1: Financial summary of the costs of the Quiota Creek Crossing 1 project.

Amount
Revenues:
CDFW grant $521,141
WCB grant $150,000
COMB match $98,859

Total: $770,000

Revenues will cover the costs to purchase the ConTech arch system, construction of the project, and
operating expenses.

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:

All documents have been reviewad by COMB legal counsel.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

All conditions outlined in the permits for the project will be followed.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

The Fisheries Committee has approved this project.

RECOMMENDATION:

a. Reject all bids received for construction of the Quiota Creek, Crossing 1 Project

b. Authorize the General Manager to re-bid the Construction of the Quiota Creek, Crossing 1
Project

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

ltem #6

Page2




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: 8/26/2013
Submitted by: Janet Gingras
Approved by: Randy Ward

SUBJECT: Establishment of Board Policy Regarding the General Manager Authorizing Approval of
Expenditures up to a Maximum of $10,000

SUMMARY:

Under the policy direction of the Board of Directors, the General Manager provides the day-to-day
management of all functions, services and activities of the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board.
Various contracts with vendors during the course of the fiscal year for the services of consultants and
licensed professionals are to be executed as the need and necessity arise.

Submitted for Board consideration is a Policy defining the authority level for which the General Manager
is authorized to enter into the aforementioned contracts.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

N/A

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

NIA

COMMITTEE STATUS:
N/A
RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Board Policy No. 1.36 (R) which defines the expenditure limits for the General Manager position.
LIST OF EXHIBITS:

1. Board Policy No. 1.36 (R)

ltem #7

Rasa-d

lagul




POLICY AND PROCEDURE
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

_ ApprovalDate: 8/262013 .~ POLICYTITLE  PolicyNo: 136(R)
‘ BOARD POLICY ! |

The purpose of this policy is to establish the General Manager’s level of authority for approval of
expenditures.

The General Manager shall have the authority to approve expenditures up to a maximum of
$10,000 made for official Agency business, provided such expenditures are within the
appropriations contained within the budget as adopted by the Agency. Purchases of equipment,
services, or supplies exceeding $10,000 shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for their
review and approval. This expenditure limitation policy does not apply to routine, recurring

operational items approved in the Board’s annual operating budget including salaries, benefits
and legal services.

Splitting or separating purchases into smaller work units for the purpose of evading the provisions
of this policy is prohibited.

Emergency expenditures shall be subject to approval by the Board President and notification to
the Board will be within 30 days of an emergency expenditure.

ltem #7

o ] -
T ays &




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: August 26, 2013
Submitted by: Janet Gingras
Approved by: Randall Ward {

SUBJECT: Authorize General Manager to execute a Purchase Order for the Fabrication and
Installation of the North Portal Elevator Engineerad Interim Solution, not to exceed $15,000

SUMMARY:

The Operating Committee met on Monday, August 19" to discuss the proposal for Phase Il of the North
Portal Elevator Rehabilitation Project. As | detailed under the General Manager's Report and prior o the
Operating Committee meeting, | had discussions with Richard Blaska, RCB Elevator LLC (RCB)
regarding the operational safety of the North Portal elevator. These discussions produced an interim
solution proffered by Mr. Blaska which involves stabilizing the counter weights that are attributable to the
most immediate safety issue. Based on those discussions, | have contracted with RCB to
engineer/design a short term solution that, when fabricated and installed, will aliow use of the elevator
solely for the purpose of providing maintenance to the flow control valve. RCB has provided an
acceptable level of assurance this solution will allow the safe use of the elevator for limited maintenance
purposes. Based on the foregoing, | formalized a purchase order in the amount of $3,850 to cause the
development of the outlined short term solution. Submitted for Board approval is the authorization to

proceed with contracting for the fabrication and installation of the counterweight assembly interim solution
in an amount not to exceed $15,000.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Board approved line item in FY 2013-14 Adopted Budget
LEGAL CONCURRENCE:

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:
N/A

COMMITTEE STATUS:

The Operations Committee discussed Phase Il of the North Portal Elevator Rehabilitation Project at a
scheduled meeting on August 18, 2013. Following that discussion | updated the Committee on the
interim solution detailed in the above Summary.

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize General Manager, with approval of the Chair, to execute a Purchase Order for the construction
and installation of an interim engineered solution to allow safe operation of the North Portal Elevator, in
an amount not to exceed $15,000,

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

N/A




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

 Date: August 26, 2013
. Submitted by: | Janet Gingras

Approved by: | RandallWard |

SUBJECT: Authorize General Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with RCB

Elevator Consulting LLC for Phase Ii Rehabilitation of the North Portal Elevator, not to
exceed $25,150

SUMBMARY:

Following the review of information provided by the Bureau of Reclamation and Republic Elevator
Company, the General Manager has determined the North Portal Elevator is unsafe for use under any
circumstance. The North Portal Elevator is the only access to the thirty-inch regulating Jet Flow Valve.
This valve is the primary flow control of the water into the South Coast Conduit (SCC) based on daily
demand. Standing Operating Procedures, as specified by the Bureau of Reclamation, require regular
service and maintenance of this valve. Maintenance has been curtailed due to the unsafe condition of the
elevator. The inability to access this valve for service and maintenance risks damage to an asset valued
in excess of $200k. It was originally anticipated this contract for services work would be brought before
the Board for approval during October of November of this year. The current unsafe condition of the
elevator and the resulting necessity to perform maintenance and service activities on the jet flow valve
require the proposed expedited process.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The amount requested is derived from the past fiscal year carry-over amount and is included in the 2013-
14 budget for this specific project (Phase II) in the amount of $25,150.

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL CONMPLIANCE:
This engineering and design services contract does not require environmental compliance.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

The Operations Committee was briefed and recommends the process brought before the Board for
approval.

RECOMMENDATION:
Authorize the General Manager o execute a Professional Services Agreement with RCB Elevator

Consulting, LLC for a not-to-exceed amount of $25,150 to produce Phase i engineering and design plans
for the major alteration of the North Portal Elevator.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

1. RCB Elevator Consulting, LLC, proposal for Phase |l services
2. Non-Competitive Bid Justification (NCB}

3. Phase | Report

4. North Portal Elevator Background Addendum

1 ltem #9

SRURUISRUPURNSIN = - s |- St B



RCB ELEVATOR CONSULTING, LLE Proposal
2117 BuUsH STREET

SAanN FrRaNciscOo, CA 94115-3103 DATE PROPOSAL NO,
415.819-5744 Fax: 415.354.3454
7122/2013 727
NAME / ADDRESS
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105
TERMS FOB PROJECT NAME PROJECT ADDRESS
Net 30 Purchaser | COMB Elevator Replacement/ ... Santa Barbara, CA
DESCRIPTION Qrty COST TOTAL

Project: Lake Cachuma North Portal Elevator, Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB),
US, Santa Barbara, CA.

—

18,650.001 18,650.00

Phase Il. Provide elevator design & engineering, structural engineering, and drafting services to
prepare the combined design, approval, bid, fabrication, work performance, and installation drawings
and specifications for the major alteration of the Freight/Special Purpose Personnel Elevator at Lake
Cachuma North Portal. The engineering shall conform to the recommendations outlined in the Phase
| survey and report dated June 20, 2013. Said engineering and drawings shall suffice as the scope of
work to be used by the awarded elevator contractor with the exception of the elevator operating fixture
submittal shop drawings, which will remain the responsibility of the contractor and fixture
manufacturer. The work of this proposal includes review of such submittal shop drawings.

The Phase Il engineering will include extensive CAD prepared drawings of the complete elevator
system and include extensive details of the specified alterations. Such drawings would include details
of the work in the installed state as well as detailed shop-type fabrication drawings of each
component or assembly required, including an itemized list of required materials. The engineering
will include full structural certification of the elevator alteration work with structural calculations with
wet stamp & signatures by a California licensed structural engineer. The engineering work, consisting
of drawings, structural calculations and written specifications, may be used as part of a complete bid
package that would include schedules, terms & conditions, etc., as provided by purchaser.
Assistance will be provided regarding: potential bidders, bid schedule, bid review & analysis, award,
pre-construction (material fabrication) lead time, construction duration, work progress, inspections,
punch lists, and final acceptance. The engineering provided may also be used as a submittal to all
Authorities Having Jurisdiction, including the State of California, DOSH - Elevator Unit, Bureau of
Reclamation, etc. The design will be sufficient for COMB to obtain a State of California Depariment of
industrial Relations, Division of Occupational Safety re-certification of the North Portal elevator, in
accordance with California Labor Code Sections 7300-7319 (CCR Title 8 and by reference, ASME
A17.1-2004). The final engineering will include additional limited support services for future ongoing

preventive maintenance including the preparation of a Preventive Maintenance Form, and minimum
maintenance frequency and performance requirements.

The drawings and specifications shall include a metric for measuring metal loss and indicating
unacceptable degradation of the guide rails from corrosion. Such conditions, if encountered, will
indicate the requirement for guiderail section replacement. This work specification condition would be

indicated as an extra to the work. A financial budgetary contingency would be required to cover this
potential.

To proceed with work, authorize and return this proposal. TOTAL

Page 1

:tvl 1% #9
PURCHASER SIGNATURE & DATE RCB stgggrémi & DATE



ROB ELEVATOR CONSULTING, LLD
2117 BusH STREET

Proposal

SaAN FrRaNDisCD, CA 84115-3103
415.819-5744 FAX: 415.354.3454

DATE

PROPOSAL NO.

7/22/2013

727

NAME / ADDRESS

Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105

TERMS FOB PROJECT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS

Net 30 Purchaser COMB Elevator Replacement/ ...

Santa Barbara, CA

DESCRIPTION

Qry COST

TOTAL

The base proposal above does not include any additional site visits beyond that performed in our
initial survey completed for Phase . Should it become necessary or requested by COMB to perform
additional site visits for whatever reason, including contractor bid visits, work performance review,
unforeseen conditions, work completion inspection, punch fists, etc., such one-day site visits shall be
extra to the base proposal and billable at a fixed rate of $2,000 each for RCB Elevator Consulting,
LLC consultant, Richard C. Blaska and $2,500 each for Eddington Engineering, Inc. structural
engineer, Ronald B. Eddington. Such additional site visits are subject to availability of each party,
schedules to be negotiated, and are severable (one or both parties).

An estimate of the cost of construction for the work proposed by the Phase Il engineering would be
approximately $250,000. However, it is very difficult to accurately estimate the cost of construction as
there may be a problem obtaining a quantity of bids due to the type of work, location of the project
and type of ownership. Due to these factors, bids may vary significantly and some bids may not be
representative of the work (unnecessarily high margin bids). Included in this subject work will be

efforts o obtain pre-bid budget estimates from qualified elevator contractors for the elevator alteration
work proposed.

Clarifications & Qualifications:

1.) This proposal is based on the work completed and recommendations made in Phase | Report,
dated June 20, 2013.

2.) The potential elevator and structural engineering services as defined above as Phase Il may also
require the purchaser to retain the services of other building design professionals, such as
architectural, electrical, mechanical, structural (beyond the elevator scope), etc.

3.} Final inspections, inspection of record, and additional site visits (see above) are not included in
this base proposal.

4)) Lead time is approximately six (6) weeks from receipt of order, conditioned upon current work
load of RCB and Eddington Engineering. Actual Lead time to be negotiated at time of award.

5.) Project will be invoiced progressively for work completed and final upon delivery of final
engineering. Payment terms are net 30.

6.) See sheet 3 of 3 for additional terms and conditions.

To proceed with work, authorize and return this proposal.

TOTAL

$18,650.00

Page 2

PURCHASER SIGNATURE & DATE

RCB g

I & oare
Page 3



COMB Non-Competitive Bid Request and Justification
Emergency contracts: The work or service is for the immediate preservation of the public health, welfare, safety, or protection of COMB
property.

This justification document consists of two (2) pages. All information must be provided and all questions must be answered. The “Required Approvals”
_section must include a date for each signature, as appropriate for the transaction.

Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board T Division:
Engineering/Operations

Contact Name: Street Address:
David Baum Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board
Telephone: 3301 Laurel Canyon Road
( 805) 687-4011 Santa Barbara, California
FAX: “ Mailing Address:
(805) 569-5825 Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board
E-Mail: 3301 Laurel Canyon Road
dbaum@cachuma-board.org Santa Barbara Cahforma 931 05—2017

o SEUUTey

Contractor Name:
RCB Elevator Consulting, LLC

2117 Bush Street

San Francisco, CA 94115

Name of Category:

Engineering Design

Describe types of purchases contemplated:

Elevator Alteration Engineering Design and Specifications

Non-reoccurring Contract: Not-To-Exceed $25,150

Work to be performed in 2013

Confract/transaction Type:
Select One: J Non-IT Goods

) [] iT Goods[:l IT Service [} !T Goods & Services Non-IT Service

Provide elevator design & engineering, structural engineering, and drafting services to prepare the combined design, approval, bid

fabrication, performance and installation drawings and specifications for the major alteration of the Freight/Special Purpose Personnel
Elevator at the North Portal, Cachuma Lake, California

Division General Manager COMB Board Action
Approved [ Denied Approved {1 Denied {71 Approved ] Denled
Signature of General Manager/Date Signature of Board Chair or Designee
David Baum
Eng./Ops. Division Manager Type Name of General Manager Type Name of Director or Designee

ltem #9
Page 4



COMB - NCBR Form

Complete responses must be provided for all of the following items.

A. WHY IS THIS CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION NECESSARY?

1.

Why can’t the acquisition category be competitively bid?

Following review of available information, the General Manager has determined the elevator is unsafe for use

under any circumstance. Prior to contracting for alteration/correction of North Portal Elevator deficiencies this
contracted service for engineering and design must be completed.

The North Portal Elevator is the only access the Thirty-Inch Regulating Jet Flow Valve. This valve is the primary
flow control of the water into the South Coast Conduit (SCC) based on daily demand. Standing Operating
Procedures, as specified by the Bureau of Reclamation, require regular service and mainfenance of this valve. .
Maintenance is currently not being performed due to the unsafe circumstance solely attributable fo the unsafe
condition of the elevator. Therefore, extending the time necessary to competitively bid the proposed engineering

and design service places at risk the operation of the valve and protection of an asset with an estimated value of in
excess of $200k.

Provide the background of events leading to this request.

May 28, 2013, United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) issued a 2012 Special Inspection Report containing
a Category 1 Recommendation involving the correction of severe deficiencies where immediate and

responsive action is required to ensure structural safety, operational integrity of a facility, or operating
personnel/public safety.

Recommendation was: "Perform, or facilitate the performance of, all required repairs necessary to address
all deficiencies and remediate the widespread corrosion and bring the elevator and appurtenant equipment to
current code andfor standards to assure safe and reliable operation.” And; “In the interim, use of the North
Portal elevator is to be restricted to emergency and to absolutely necessary use.”

Describe the uniqueness of the acquisition

RCB Elevator Consulting, LLC, is uniguely qualified to perform the second phase of planned work because they
had been previously selected by COMB to provide their services to evaluate and prepare a report on the feasibility
of retaining & altering or replacing an existing service elevator and appurtenances (Phase 1). The intent of this
work is to determine a best course action for an outcome fo provide a robust, reliable, serviceable, safe, code &
standards complaint, seismically compliant & survivable service elevator.

The Phase | Report prepared has been reviewed by the Member Units and USBR.
What are the consequences of not purchasing the good and/or service for the proposed category?

As previously described, the expeditious preparation of engineering and design will allow COMB to seek a
responsible contractor to make necessary alterations to the elevator thereby allowing service and maintenance
protection to the most important single component of the South Coast Conduit water delivery system.

What market research was conducted to substantiate whether there is competition available for this
category, including evaluation of whether other (substitute) items were considered?

The four firms that submitted proposals to conduct the Phase | effort would potentially be capable of conducting
the proposed Phase il work.

B. PRICE ANALYSIS

COMB internal engineering analysis has concluded the proposed expenditure of approximately $25k is reasonable an likely

within the range that would have been expected through a competitive bid process. Further, this is the identical amount carried
over from the 2012-13, budget for Phase II of this project.

Item #9
Page 5



ROB ELEVATOR DONSULTING, LLD
Elevator Shop Drawings Preparation
Elevator Structural Engineering
Elevator Design Consuliing

August 2, 2013

David Baum, Engineering-Operations Division Manager
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board

3301 Laure! Canyon Road

Santa Barbara, CA 93015-2017

Project: Lake Cachuma North Portal

Subject: Phase | - Lake Cachuma North Portal Elevator Engineering Services Evaluation, Rev. B

Reference: P.O. #12-13-10, April 24, 2013

Dear Mr. Baum,

On June 13, 2013, Mr. Ronald B Eddington, S.E, California license #83375, and this author performed an onsite survey
and engineering inspection of the existing freight elevator at the facility, Lake Cachuma North Portal, Santa Barbara,
California. That survey / inspection and this report shall serve as the work in conformance of your purchase order #12-13-
10, dated April 24, 2013, work entitled, Phase | ~ Lake Cachuma North Portal Elevator Engineering Services Evaluation.

Included with this report is our proposal for Phase 1l — Lake Cachuma North Portal Elevator Engineering Services,
Alteration of Elevator and Hoistway.

Outline of Report, Findings and Recommendations
Applicable Jurisdiction & Code

Outline of Equipment

Survey Photography

Elevator History

Elevator Usage

Facility Access & Emergency Egress
Corrosion Correction & Mitigation

Seismic Retrofit & Compliance

Operational & Safety Upgrades & Compliance
Preventive Maintenance

Phase Il Engineering

RETIEMMOO®D P

Report, Findings and Recommendations

A. Applicable Jurisdiction & Code: To our understanding, the Lake Cachuma North Portal facility is owned by the United
States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR). As such, technically, the elevator would fall under U.S. Federal jurisdiction
and not the State of California. However, the administration of the facility is performed under contract by the USBR
with the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB), a California Joint Powers Agency. As a California
entity, jurisdiction over the elevator would reside with Cal/lOSHA - Elevator Unit. This is evidenced by the existence
of a valid State of California operating permit, conveyance number 031411. .

The applicable elevator code would be CCR Title 8, Division 1, Chapter 4, Subchapter 6. Elevator Safety Orders,
Group | & II. Alterations to the existing elevator would fall under Group | section 3000(h), section 3141.2.in Group IV,

and by reference ASME A17.1-2004, Section 5.7 Special Purpose Personnel Elevators, Section 8.7 Alterations, and
Section 8.4 Seismic.

2117 Bush Sireet , phone: 415-819-5744  fax: 415:354-3454
San Francisco, CA 94115 e-mail: rich@bloska.com  web: www.blaska.com
ltem #9

Page 6



Lake Cachuma North Portal
Elevator Report - cont.

ROB ELEVATOR
CONBULTING, LLD

B.

Outline of Equipment:

..OQOQOIUQ'..'OQGOC

Date of Installation:
California Permit:
Manufacturer:

Alterations — Company & Date:

Elevator Type:
Classification:

Rated Load (Capacity):
Platform Size:
Electrical Power:
Motor Size / Amperes:
Controls:

Operation:

Speed:

Rise:

Stops / Openings:

Floor Designations & Elevations:

Car Gate:
Entrances:
Car Sling & Platform:

19562-4

#031411

Kimball Bros. Co., Council Bluffs, 1A

Republic Elevator - 2005 (new controls)

Overhead Geared Traction

Freight, Class A (Special Purpose Personnel Elevator)
6,000 lbs.

5-4"Wx 5'-8"D

220 VAC

25 HP /7B FLA

MCE #VFAC-1000, S/N 3119020, Job 2005049127
Selective Collective Automatic

100 FPM

129'-8 1/2" (below grade)

3/3,inline

*3" = Bl 658.30, “2" = EL 667.30 & “*1" = El. 788.00 (Rev. A)
Single-Section Rising Screen Gate

Swing Screen Gate

Structural Steel

Survey Photography: One hundred eighty (180) digital photographs were taken of the complete elevator system and

related facility. The photographs may be viewed or downioaded (individually or coflectively) from our website:
hitp://www.blaska.com/Client Access/RCB/ICOMB/Cachuma.htm. These photographs are helpful to document the

existing equipment, the equipment condition and the relationship of the equipment to the faciiity.

Elevator History: The elevator system was installed at the time of the facility construction, from 1952 to 1954. The
manufacturer of the elevator system would appear to be Kimball Bros. Co., Council Bluffs, IA as evidenced by the
data plate on the major piece of equipment, the geared drive machine. The instailing company is not known but may
have been the manufacturer, Kimball Bros. Co. Typically, and as required by code, elevators are to contain a Data
Plate mounted to the elevator car frame crosshead. Such data plates are to contain the equipment manufacturer or

installer along with basic system information including the capacity, empty car weight, hoist rope quantity and
strength. The Data Plate is missing and presumed lost.

The original elevator system has been modernized (altered) around the year 2005 to include the installation of new,
solid state MCE VFMC-1000 controls, operating fixtures, hoistway wiring and switches. A Hollister-Whitney model
#205 overspeed governor and tension weight were installed. The hoist and governor ropes were replaced. The
system includes a single-axis seismic switch, which may also have been added at that time.

Elevator Usage: The elevator is an essential system for the Lake Cachuma North Portal operation and maintenance.
This single elevator is the only viable means of access to the water contro! valves and equipment at the base of the
facility, approximately 130 feet below the surface, with the exception of a hoistway ladder. The elevator is in relative
terms, of very low usage. Access to the water control equipment at the lower levels is required on approximately a

weekly basis. As a result, major wear items (not subject to corrosion), such as the drive motor and geared machine,
exhibit negligible wear.

Alternate Access & Egress: The only alternate means to the base of the facility is via a fixed ladder, which runs the
full height of the hoistway, located at the left side of the elevator car and to the rear of the car guide rail. There is an
emergency exit at the top of the elevator cab, accessible via a permanent ladder at the rear of the car. Opening the
emergency exit activates a switch that opens the elevator safety circuit, preventing the car from moving. The
hoistway ladder is easily accessible from the top of the elevator car. There is a separate ladder outside of the
elevator hoistway connecting the 2 (El. 687.30) and 3« (El. 658.30 ~ Rev. A) landings. Therefore, in the event of an
elevator shut down, access to the hoistway ladder is possible through the elevator car when it is parked at either the

Page 2 of 10

08/02/2?{15ng\§ B

Page 7



Lake Cachuma North Portal zgssﬁtszf; DS.::
Elevator Report - cont. TING,

2" or 3™ landing. There is always access to the hoistway ladder for personnel who are in the car should the car shut
down anywhere in the hoistway. The problem of entrapment occurs when personnel are located at the lower levels
and the elevator car is anywhere in the hoistway above the 2™ landing (El. 667.30), including at the top level (El
788.00). Due to the size of the existing elevator car, it is not possible to pass by the car platform when using the
ladder. The existing clearance between the ladder and the car is only a few inches.

This danger of personnel entrapment at the lower levels, due to an inoperable elevator, is an original facility design
condition. It amplifies the need for elevator reliability, something which can never be assured to 100%. One potential
solution (currently being used) would be to implement rules and systems fo assure that the elevator always remains at
one of the lower landings when personnel are at these landings. Currently this can be physically accomplished by
making certain that the elevator car gate and/or the hoistway swing door are left open while at these landings. Due to
the integral car gate switch and hoistway door interlocks, the elevator cannot run if either the gate or door is open.

This elevator is equipped with automatic selective-collective operation, the same as a standard commercial passenger
elevator. This means that provided the car gate and hoistway doors are closed, the car is free to respond to calls
placed in the car or at any landing. This automatic operation is designed to handle all traffic in a building. When
selecting an automatic control system for this facility, it may have been thought that multiple personnei will
independently need fo come and go to the three landings. A common means to override the automatic selective-
collective operation is with Independent Service Operation (ISO). The feature requires control logic and a dedicated
key switch in the car operating panel. When the 1SO switch is turned on, the operator has commandeered the
elevator and has total control over its movement from the car operating panel. The hall station call buttons are
rendered inoperable and the car will remain where parked. 1SO has become standard on modern commercial
elevators and the logic may be present in the existing, modern controlier (an inquiry to the manufacturer would be

required to confirm — Phase lI). Ifitis, then simply adding the switch in the car operating panel would provide the
service,

The existing elevator system may be sufficient to prevent lower landing entrapment provided all personnel are diligent
in leaving the hoistway door and/or car gate open when at these tandings. Adding an I1SO switch and its diligent use
might provide further protection. With these protocols, escape through the car emergency exit and up the ladder
would always be possible. However, if it were deemed essential that passage by the car via the ladder be made
possible, this can be accomplished. A complete new elevator car would be required, including the car sling and
platform. A car could be designed and built with the left rear corner notched out to provide sufficient clearance at the
front of the ladder. Such an L-shaped platform and car would diminish the functional area and cargo capability of the
elevator, It would also greatly complicate access from the elevator car top to the hoistway ladder, as there would be a
gap to traverse the size of the clearance. Due to this gap and the potential fall hazard, the code would require a
guard rail system, complicating ladder access even more.

Recommendation: It is our recommendation that the car shape not be altered to provide ladder pass-through and that
a protocol of retaining the elevator car at the lower landings when personnel are at those landings. The addition of an
180 switch may assist in the function of this protocol. Further, it is important to point out that leaving an elevator car
and accessing the open hoistway is not a procedure to be taken lightly. Commercial passenger and freight elevators
are required to have the car emergency exit locked and only operable from the top of the elevator car, and only by
elevator or emergency personnel (ASME A17.1, 2.14.1.5.1(c)). ASME A17.1-2004, Section 5.7 Special Purpose
Personnel Elevators, section 5.7.10.4 does allow the emergency exit to be operable from inside the car. However,
great caution must be exercised when exiting the car into the open hoistway. The required emergency exit switch
(5.7.10.4.4) must be tested for assurance that the elevator safety circuit is opened, so that if whatever has caused the
elevator to become inoperable were to self-correct, the elevator doesn't move with a person in the hoistway. ltis
imperative that when using the emergency exit that the emergency exit door be left open, so as not to reclose the
switch. As a precaution, prior to leaving the car, the car operating pane! stop switch should be activated. The car top

operating station located at the crosshead also contains a stop switch, which may be activated as an additional
precaution.

G. Corrosion Correction & Mitigation: Various systems and components of the elevator are corroded. The most severe
corrosion occurs below the lake water line, which occurs at approximate elevation 752.20:

P 1 08/02/2013, Rey, B
age 3 of 10 A ﬁb

Page 8



Lake Cachuma North Portal gc B Est:;ui
Elevator Report - cont. ONSULTING, LLEC

Elevator Car, Sling & Platform: The elevator car, though original, exhibits relatively little corrosion. There is some
minor surface rust but nothing of a structural nature. The car has been spared the extensive corrosion of other
hoistway components due to it typically being parked at the {op landing, well above the waterline.
Recommendation: Repair all damaged materials, remove all rust, grease, dirt, etc. Prime and finish paint with an
approved rust preventing paint, such as Rust-Oleum, Steel-Tech® High-Build Epoxy Mastic.

Entrance Doors: The galvanized hoistway doors are in relatively good condition with the exception of the door
latch hardware and electrical interlocks.

Recommendation: Replace rusting swinging door iatch hardware with new stainless steel swinging door latch
hardware (National Hardware #N303-131). Attach with stainless steel fasteners. Replace drip shields with new
stainless steel shields. Replace door interlocks with GAL water resistant interlocks. Clean and lubricate as
required. Remove rust where occurs and re-finish with ZRC - ZRC Galvilite Galvanizing Repair Compound, Rust-
Oleum 7000 System <500 VOC Cold Galvanizing Compound, or equal.

3. Counterweight: The extensive corroding of the counterweight (cwt.) frame is the most serious and potentiaily
hazardous of the elevator corrosion problem. The cwt. frame is comprised of structural members connected only
by welded joints. The welds exhibit extensive corrosion to the extent that the structural integrity of the frame
assembly has been compromised and is approaching structurally deficient. With continued corrosion, the cwt.
frame will eventually fail. Inspections alone are not sufficient to determine the level of degradation.
Recommendation; The complete counterweight assembly must be replaced. The new assembly should be
comprised of hot-dipped galvanized structural members connected with stainless steel fasteners, including the tie
rods. The filler weights shall also be hot-dipped galvanized. Include Hollister-Whitney model #376 iron slide

guides with top lubricators and with seismic retainer plates. Static balance the counterweight and empty car plus
40% of rated load.

4. Car & Counterweight Guide Rails: There is extensive surface corrosion of the car and counterweight guide rail
flanges (backs) and the fishplates (splice plates) & fasteners. The guide rail blades (milled running surfaces) and
the webs (center) are largely spared from major corrosion due to the heavy, automatic lubrication of the rails by
the car top slide guides.

Recommendation; lt is our assessment that the loss of metal due to corrosion amounts to an approximate 10%
loss of actual guide rail strength. Due fo the proposed seismic upgrade with new guide rail bracket installation
(see seismic section below), the strength loss is acceptable and can be accommodated with shorter bracket
spans. The existing rust shall be removed to clean steel (90% rust removal) with the use of manual and/or power

tools. The cleaned guide rails with new seismic fishplates and fasteners (see seismic section below) shall be fully
coated with SEM Products Inc., 2.8 Rust-Shield™, color “black.”

We would also recommend that the Phase Il engineering include a metric for a defined methodology for
measurement of the guide rails and the establishment of minimum acceptable, final steel dimensional criteria for
retention of the existing guide rails. Those guide rails that fail this metric, should they exist, are to be replaced in

kind with new sections of guide rails. Such replacement guide rails shall be cleaned and coated as recommended
for the existing retained rails, as will be defined in the Phase |l engineering.

5. Guide Rail Fishplates: The guide rail fishplates (splice plates) and fasteners are excessively rusted.
Recommendation: Due to the corrosion and the upgrade to seismic compliance, all car and counterweight guide
rail fishplates and their fasteners shall be replaced with new, T-section type seismic fishplates. The new fishplate
fasteners shall be A307 galvanized hex bolts and nuts. The new installed fishplates and fasteners shall be
cleaned of all grease and fully coated with SEM Products Inc., 2.8 Rust-Shield™, color "black.”

6. Guide Brackets: The brackets for both the car and counterweight guide rails that connect the rails to the structure
located below the waterline are excessively rusted, many to the point of structural deficiency. The bracket
fastening to the concrete structure vary and include some original attachments consisting of drilled and poured
lead studs and many replacement attachments consisting of drilled lead inset nuts. These concrete fastenings do
not meet the seismic load criteria and may be subject to failure under seismic loads.

Recommendation; Leave existing car and counterweight brackets in place, remove rust and fully coated with

Page 4 of 10 08/0212(413, Rey B
Page 9



Lake Cachuma North Portal gg B ELE:/':;'US_B
Elevator Report - cont. NSULTING,

10.

11.

12.

SEM Products Inc., 2.8 Rust-Shield™, color “black.” Where rust cannot be removed, coat with SEM Products
Inc., 8950 Rust-Mort™. Install new car and counterweight brackets comprised of hot-dipped galvanized
members, fastened to the concrete structure with stainless steel Hilti KB-TZ wedge anchors. Multi-piece brackets
are to be interconnected with stainless steel bolts through adjustment slots and securely pinned with stainless
steel roll pins. All rail span and re-bracketing design shall show compliance with 2004, ASME A17.1 seismic
requirements. Drawings and calculations shall be performed by a Structural Engineer registered in the State to
perform such services. See Phase Il engineering for design, fabrication and installation details and certification.

Hoist & Governor Ropes: The existing six (6) 1/2" diameter hoist and the one (1) 3/8" diameter govemor steel
wire ropes and their end connection shackles are corroded. Standard steel elevator wire ropes are very sensitive
to moisture and degrade quickly when exposed to water.

Recommend: Replace the hoist and governor ropes with new 1/2" diameter 8x19 Seale, natural fiber core,
galvanized steel traction wire ropes, equal to Gustav Wolf #80-002G or Bethlehem Wirerope Works Inc. 8x18
Seale Traction Galvanized. Note operational section regarding replacing the elevator governor. Dueto
galvanized wire rope not typically stocked, minimum quantity length purchase may require supplying twice the
amount of rope required for the hoist and governor rope installation. The excess galvanized wire rope should be
properly crated, delivered, stored and inventoried by COMB for use in a future re-roping as required. Provide new

shackles, fully coated with SEM Products inc., 2.8 Rust-Shield™, color “black.” Provide stainless steel cable and
clamps for anti-rotation.

Governor Tension Weight: The existing Holfister-Whitney #191 (12° diameter) tension weight is excessively
corroded, with apparent operational degradation.
Recommendation: Install a new Hollister-Whitney #192 (16" diameter), 0.5” diameter rope tension weight. The

new tension weight assembly shall include a factory applied special epoxy {or equal) water repellant, anti-rust
coating. All fasteners and hardware shall be stainless steel. Include guard.

Car & Counterweight Buffers: The existing car and counterweight buffers and stands are heavily corroded and
likely non-functioning.

Recommendation: Install new car and counterweight spring buffers with engineered supports (raised for car).
The complete assemblies shali be hot-dipped galvanized and all fasteners & hardware shall be stainless steel.
Install new hot-dipped galvanized bearing plates with stainless steel fasteners to car bolster channels per Phase 1l
engineering. Provide two (2) buffers springs on a single, spread pattern bearing plate for the counterweight
designed to accommodate a single compensation chain (see operational section). Anchor buffer supports to

concrete with stainless steel Hilti KB-TZ wedge anchors, per Phase || engineering. Remove and discard existing
counterweight guard.

Landing System Vanes; The existing Motion Control Engineering landing system vanes, support channels &

fastenings below the water line are heavily corroded.

Recommendation: Install new hot-dipped galvanized (ferrous) landing system vanes with new stainless steel
channel systems, brackets & fasteners (Unisfrut SS series or equal). Adjust for proper floor landing accuracy.

Hoistway Ladder: Most of the galvanized hoistway ladder is in good condition with some surface corrosion. The
brackets and fastenings to the concrete hoistway, however, are heavily corroded and are structurally suspect.
Recommendation: Leave existing ladder brackets in place. Remove rust where occurs and re-finish with ZRC -
ZRC Galvilite Galvanizing Repair Compound, Rust-Oleum 7000 System <500 VOC Cold Galvanizing Compound,
or equal. Where rust cannot be removed, coat with SEM Products Inc., 6950 Rust-Mort™. Install new hot-dipped
galvanized brackets located mid-span of the existing brackets, fastened to the concrete structure with stainless

steel Hilti KB-TZ wedge anchors and to the existing ladder with stainless steel bolts. See Phase Il engineering for
design, fabrication and installation details and certification.

Wire Mesh Screening: The galvanized wire mesh screening at the front of the hoistway is in good condition with

some surface corrosion. The brackets and fastenings to the concrete hoistway are heavily corroded and are
structurally suspect.

Recommendation: Leave existing wire mesh screen and brackets in place. Remove rust where occurs and re-

Page 5 of 10

08/02/?1961 % %@: B
Page 10



Lake Cachuma North Portal gg 5:1-5\/:;05— G
Elevator Report - cont. ULTING,

finish with ZRC - ZRC Galvilite Galvanizing Repair Compound, Rust-Oleum 7000 System <500 VOC Cold
Galvanizing Compound, ar equal. Where rust cannot be removed, coat with SEM Products inc., 6950 Rust-
Mort™. Install new hot-dipped galvanized brackets located approximately 4" above each section top brackets
and 4" below each section bottom brackets, fastened to the concrete structure with stainless steel Hilti KB-TZ
wedge anchors. See Phase Il engineering for design, fabrication and installation details and certification.
13. Electrical Conduits: There are original metallic conduits and utilities that exhibit considerable corresion. There
are newer PVC conduits that have heavily corroded support straps, clamps and hangers. There are locations of
excessive span between conduit supports.
Recommendation: Remove all decommissioned (not in current use) elevator and non-elevator related etectrical
conduits, plumbing and utilities. Replace all corroding conduit connectors, support straps, clamps and hangers
with approved PVC or stainless steel connectors, support straps, clamps and hangers (Gibson Stainless &
Specialty Inc. or equal), including stainless steel fasteners and anchors. Provide additional conduit supports

where vertical spans exceed 10 feet, consisting of stainless steel channel systems, brackets & fasteners (Unistrut
S8 series or equal).

H. Seismic Retrofit & Compliance: The existing elevator does not comply with current seismic standards, having been
installed several decades before the implementation of the seismic code. The facility is located in the USGS Seismic
Zone 4 (as still referred to by ASME A17.1) and is near several known, active earthquake fault lines. The Santa
Barbara County “2011 Muiti-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan” lists earthquake hazards as a “significant” planning
consideration. The potential for damage to the elevator system during a moderate seismic event is high. Most forms
of earthquake damage would render the elevator unsafe and/or unusable until repairs could be made. The duration of
lack of service prior to repairs would likely be compounded by the number of other elevator systems also damaged by
the quake and the limited resources of technicians and materials that can be readily deployed to make repairs. There
exists a potential of personnel entrapment caused by earthquake damage to the elevator system (see discussion of
limited egress above). The common types of earthquake damage to elevator systems include equipment overtumning,
hoist ropes leaving the sheaves, car and (especially) counterweight guide rail displacement, car and (especially)
counterweight dislocation from the guide rails, and traveling cable entanglement with hoistway equipment.

1. Equipment Anchorage; The existing controller enclosure anchorage to the machine room floor appears deficient.
Recommendation; Perform structural calculations to investigate the adequacy of existing anchorage and possibly
add an additional anchor on each side to fill all of the provided anchor holes

2. Hoist Rope Retainers: The geared machine drive sheave and the deflector sheave do not have rope retainers.
Recommendation: Install engineered compliant rope retainers with 3/16” gap to ropes onto the drive machine and
the deflector sheave. See Phase |l engineering for design, fabrication and installation details and certification.

3. Car & Counterweight Guide Rail Retainers: Guide rail retainers are structural members (typically plates) that
surround the complete three milled surfaces of the guide rail, with a running clearance of 3/16". Their function is
to better retain the car and counterweight guidance onto the guide rails and prevent derailment. The existing car
and counterweight do not have the code required guide rail retainers.

Recommendation: Add guide rail retainer plates to the existing car and to the new counterweight. These plates
shall be hot-dipped galvanized and fastened with stainless steel fasteners. See Phase Il engineering for design,
fabrication and installation details and certification.

4. Guide Rails & Brackets: The existing guide rails as currently bracketed are deficient to withstand the seismic
forces as prescribed by code (ASME A17.1-2004, Section 8.4). In a moderate seismic event, it is possible (even
probable) that the guide rails may become dislodged, deformed, or separated from the structure. Such an
occurrence may also cause the car and/or counterweight to become derailed. The conditions are especially
severe due to the excessive corrosion of the guide rail bracketing (see corrosion section).

Recommendation; Install reinforcement to the overhead car and counterweight guide rail bracket assemblies and
install new, compliant car and counterweight guide rail brackets throughout the hoistway. The new brackets shall
be hot-dipped galvanized and with stainless steel fasteners and locking roll pins (see corrosion section). See

Page 6 of 10

08/02/%%%’\ &}fél B

Page 11



Lake Cachuma North Portal ‘;‘3 B ELEVA;UR
Elevator Report - cont. ONSULTING, LLC

5.

Phase |l engineering for design, fabrication and installation details and certification.

Guide Rail Fishplates: The existing guide rail fishplates {splice plates) do not meet the required seismic strength
standards, full section modulus of the guide rails. They present weak point in the guide rail stacks where
structural failure can occur in a seismic event. Seismic fishplates help transfer loading fo rail sections beyond the
immediate brackets for increased sirength and reduced deflection. The existing fishplates and fasteners are
heavily corroded, causing further weakness.

Recommendation: Install new car and counterweight T-section seismic fishplates onto the cleaned guide rails
(see corrosion section).

Traveling Cable Snap Guards: In the absence of snag guards, the traveling cable can swing in the hoistway
during a seismic event and become entangled (snagged) onto adjacent hardware and equipment in the hoistway.

Recommendation: Install approved snag guards to prevent traveling cable entanglement. All materials, hardware
and fasteners shall be either galvanized steel or stainless steel.

|. Operational & Safety Upgrades & Compliance: Although the elevator had been partially modernized in 20095, there
are a number of elevator systems that are deficient, potentially faulty or non-compliant. Some assemblies require
repair or replacement and some new assemblies should be installed to improve safety and reliability.

1.

Car Overspeed Safeties: The original Kimball overspeed safeties at the base of the elevator car are-of an age
and design where reliability and safety cannot be assured. The criticality of the overspeed safety system is such
that unless there is complete confidence in the system, itis prudent to replace the safeties with a modern, proven
system.

Recommendation; Install a new Hollister-Whitney (H-W) model #540 Type-A, instantaneous safety set. Include
the water-resistant NEMA 4 micro-switch in lieu of the standard GAL gate-type switch. Provide ample lubrication
to components to prevent corrosion. Include seismic guide rail retainers. Fasten to existing car frame bolsters
with a hot-dipped galvanized adapter plate, if required, and stainless steel fasteners. Due to the deep pit, install
without the H-W Governor Rod Assembly kit and instead connect the governor rope loop directly to the safety
actuator arm with approved shackles. Include H-W model #371 iron slide guides. See Phase Il engineering for
design, fabrication and installation details and certification.

Overspeed Governor; The existing overspeed governor is a Hollister-Whitney model #205 (12" diameter) with an
overspeed switch and 0.375” wire rope. This governor was installed during the modernization in 2005 and is in
good condition.

Recommendation: Install a new Hollister-Whitney model #201 (16" diameter) with an overspeed switch and 0.5"
galvanized wire rope. The new governor is required to work with the larger galvanized wire rope and for the
different pull-through force required by the new H-W #540 safeties. The new governor shall be shop calibrated for
the slightly reduced coefficient of friction of the new galvanized hoist rope and for the puil-through force required
by the new H-W #540 safeties. Core a new hole through the machine room floor as required for the 16" rope
centers. Install the new governor to the machine room floor slab using a hot-dipped galvanized adapter plate and

four (4) Hilti KB-TZ 3/8" stainless steel wedge anchors. See Phase il engineering for design, fabrication and
installation details and certification.

Ascending Car Overspeed and Unintended Car Movement: The elevator overspeed safeties mounted on the car
only function in in the down direction. A counterweighted traction elevator is actually more inclined to overspeed
(run away) in the up direction due to the counterweight weighing more than the elevator car and its typical fight
load of one or two persons. There is also the danger of the elevator car leaving the landing with the gate and
door open. The elevator code has been upgraded (ASME A17.1-2000, Section 2.19) to require an additional
emergency brake to prevent ascending car overspeed and unintended car movement (ACO-UCM) for all new
installations. There are five (5) elevator alteration triggers that would require the installation of this additional
safety device, none of which apply to what we are recommending in this alteration.

Recommendation; Although ACO-UCM would not be required by code, this additional safety feature may be
voluntarily added. We recommend that ACO-UCM be installed for this elevator due to the more unique safety and
service considerations involved. The most common means of adding ACO-UCM is to install a Hollister-Whitney

Page 7 of 10 OBIOZI%Qé?ﬁl}?& B

Page 12



Lake Cachuma North Portal 225 E‘-EVA;DLR
Elevator Report - cont. NSULTING, LLG

Rope Gripper™, rope brake. This will require adding a structural mounting frame to the exposed machine beams
in the elevator machine room. It will also require additional electrical circuitry, which is available from:

* Motion Control Engineering, Inc. (the existing controller manufacturer), Rope Gripper™ Overlay

» G.A.L. Manufacturing Corp., Model FMG-1

¢ Electrodyn Systems Ltd., Model UMDC

See Phase Il engineering for design, fabrication and installation details and certification.

4. Car Frame Design: The existing car frame design and component member sizes are structurally suspect for the
rated load (capacity) of 6,000 Ibs. In particular, the car frame base bolster safety channels, two (2) C5x6.7, are
far lighter than typically supplied for the elevator size, type and capacity. The provision of new overspeed safeties
will require cerlifying that the bolsters to which they are attached are sufficient for the load. Also, the existing
hitch plate for the hoist rope shackles is located above the crosshead channels, with their bolts in tension, which
is not allowed by code.

Recommendation: Perform Phase Il engineering to structurally analyze the existing car frame. Should any part
of the car frame, such as the safety boisters, prove deficient, engineer a solution to field correct or replace the
deficient components. Provide engineering to relocate the rope hitch plate to be located beneath the crosshead

channels. Certify the compliance of the redesigned car frame, as required. See Phase Il engineering for design,
fabrication and installation details and certification.

5. Rope Weight Compensation; Traction elevators with a total rise (travel) of 120 feet or more should include rope
weight compensation to offset the imbalance in the system at the ends of the travel, due to the weight of the wire
ropes. Rope weight compensation improves (assures) proper drive sheave-to-rope fraction and improved the
elevator control, drive stability and performance. The existing elevator does not have rope weight compensation.
Recommendation: Install rope weight compensation in the form of a Whisperflex (or equal) encapsulated chain
nominally of equal weight to the combined hoist ropes. Installation of compensation removes the requirement to
have a counterweight guard in the pit; therefore, it shall be removed. Provide galvanized or stainless steel
fasteners and hardware. See Phase l engineering for design, fabrication and installation details and certification.

6. CarPlatform Apron: The existing elevator has a car platform apron of approximately 18" in height. The current
elevator code requires an apron of 48", provided there is sufficient pit depth. The 8 foot pit depth is ample for the
prescribed apron. The purpose of the 48" apron is to prevent entrapped elevator passengers from falling down
the elevator hoistway if exiting a stuck, above floor level car is attempted — a common cause of elevator fatalities.
Recommendation: Install a new, hot-dipped galvanized 14 GA steel platform apron with a 48" vertical surface and

an 8" high 30 degree lower bevel, for the width of the car platform. The apron shall be diagonally braced for
structural integrity, See Phase li engineering for design.

7. Door Control Equipment: The most common source of elevator malfunction is with the elevator car gate and
hoistway door control equipment, When an elevator system is exposed {o excessive moisture or water, the
standard door control equipment becomes especially vulnerable. It is our understanding that the door control
equipment of this elevator has caused elevator shutdowns.

Recommendation: Replace all door control equipment with new water resistant models from G.A.L.
Manufacturing Corp. including:

« Model #GW Gate Switch
= Model #WP Interlocks
o Water Resistant Retiring Cam

Install new stainless steel drip aprons over gate switch and interlocks. Install with stainless steel fasteners and
hardware. Install new wiring with water-tight conduit and connectors.

8. Operating Fixtures: Another source of elevator malfunction that can be amplified by moisture are the operating
fixtures, which include the hall stations, car stations, operating switches, etc. We understand that these
components may also Have contributed to past elevator problems. Although the existing fixtures were intended
as water resistant, there are considerable differences in equipment quality available regarding water resistance.
The existing push buttons and key switches are not of the highest quality in this regard.

Recommendation: Install all new high quality water resistant fixtures, including the car operating panel, hall

Page 8 of 10 08102/%% ?n 5&‘)’ B
Page 13



Lake Cachuma North Portal g‘gs Bi"'i:’:: D:c
Elevator Report - cont. - ’

stations, car top station, pit switch, etc. Key switches, push buttons and devices shall be NEMA 4/4X (IP67)
certified, industrial application type (not typical elevator switches and buttons). Provide the NEMA Enclosure
series by PTL Equipment: hitp//www.ptlequipment.com/web-content/NEMAenclosures.html. Install with
stainless steel fasteners, hardware, and water-tight conduit & connectors. Qur recommendation to add an

Independent Service Operation key switch to the car operating panel (see access) would be better accomplished
with a new panel.

Hatch Limit Switches: The existing C.J. Anderson limit switches, mounting brackets and piping located below the
water line are corroded. The switch mounting may eventually fail and the operation can become faulty due to the
corrosion. Either event would cause the elevator to malfunction.

Recommendation: Replace all limit switches with new C.J. Anderson & Co., Water/Dust Resistant NEMA 4/12

limit switches with new stainless steel mounting channels, fasteners & hardware, and water-tight conduit &
connectors.

10. GFCI Service Qutlets: The current elevator and electrical codes require all electrical service outlets to be ground
fault circuit interrupt to prevent electrical shock. This is especially important in a wet environment.
Recommendation: Convert all 120V service outlets in the machine room and hoistway/pit to GFCL.

11. Crosshead Data Plate. Elevators are required by code to have a crosshead data plate with the prescribed basic
elevator information. The original crosshead data plate has been removed and is presumed lost.
Recommendation: Install a new crosshead data plate with the prescribed information. The information includes
the deadweight (empty weight) of the suspended elevator car. Once the alteration work is completed, the
elevator shall be weighed with a certified dynamometer and the weight added to the new data plate.

J. Preventive Maintenance; The existing elevator service and preventive maintenance of the elevator system is
substandard and in need of improvement. Current elevator code requires performance of a Maintenance Control
Program.(MCP) that is specific to the elevator system. A Maintenance Control Program differs considerably from a
*Check Chart” or "Maintenance Log", commonly used by service companies when performing routine and periodic

elevator service, repair, testing and adjustment. The spiral notebook and Fire Service Testing Record documents
found onsite are insufficient and non-compliant.

The condition of the equipment, especially the very heavy corrosion which in many cases jeopardizes the structural
and operational integrity of the elevator system, should never be allowed to occur and degrade the elevator to its
present state. Routine maintenance, cleaning and lubricating can help prevent some of this type of degradation. For
more extensive prevention and restoration, such as major cleaning, painting, coating application, replacement in kind,
upgrades, etc., the maintenance contractor should present proposals to the owner on a timely, periodic basis. Such

proactive notification of the need for work should occur long before the equipment exhibits the type of degradation as
seen at this facility.

Recommendation: Engage a qualified elevator contractor, who is a California Certified Qualified Conveyance
Company (CQCC), to perform the work outlined herein (after the completion of the Phase Il engineering). This same
or a different CQCC contractor shall provide monthly (not “periodic”) preventive maintenance. This maintenance
contractor must prepare and maintain a comprehensive and compliant Maintenance Control Program with the
necessary documentation left onsite. They shall also agree fo notify the owner of all necessary additional work
needed to maintain the elevator system in proper working order.

K. Phase !l Engineering: See enclosed our proposal for the Phase |} Engineering as outlined in this report. Much of the
work proposed herein will require formal engineering, including drawings, performance specifications, equipment
specifications, installation & fabrication details, calculations, structural certifications, etc. The purpose of this
engineering is fo pre-design the work to be performed. The engineering will help to quantify the work more clearly for
the bidding contractors. Typically this will yield more accurate, price competitive bids by the contractors as it will
remove much of the guesswork in their estimating process. It will alleviate the need for the contractor to prepare and
submit shop drawings as the engineering will serve as the “blueprint” for the work, down to the fine detail. An
exception to the foregoing will be the elevator operating fixtures, which will require detailed manufacturer shop

Page 9 of 10 08/02/?1031 '% 5 v. B
Page 14



L ake Cachuma North Portal
Elevator Report - cont.

RUCB ELEVATOR
CONSULTING, LLD

drawings for review, approval, manufacturing and installation.

Lead time for the Phase Il Engineering will be approximately six (6) weeks from acceptance of the proposal and is

subject to existing and intervening workloads,

The Phase |l Engineering proposal includes a separate amount to furnish one or more additional site visits as may be
requested or necessary. Such additional visits may include a bidder site walk, problem resolution, progress
inspection, final inspection, punch lists, etc. Such added work will be optional and subject to availability.

Also included with Phase 1l will be a list of recommended elevator confractors who might bid the necessary alteration
work and perform the ongoing preventive maintenance.

Conclusion

From our initial observations and analysis, our conclusion is that the subject elevator is currently operating in a safety
compromised condition, due to the heavy corrosion and poor condition of some of the essential components. Chief
among our concerns is the condition of the elevator counterweight frame and the loss of critical welded connections

between structural components.

Thank you for the opportunity to be of service. Please feel free to contact the authors if you have any questions or if we

can be of additional service.

Regards,

e st

Richard C. Blaska
Principal Consultant
RCB Elevator Consulting, LLC

encl.

FrA 7 a1
J_.?;,w e
3 L
/ V

/ :
Ronald B. Eddington
Structural Engineer

Eddington Engineering, inc.

SE Stamp

Page 10 of 10

08/02,%?61%1 %egl B

Page 15



Addendum to North Portal Elevator item

The North Portal Elevator (NPE) was constructed in 1956 under the direction of the USBR. The
NPE provides access to the Tecolote Tunnel and three separate valves: 1) A Thirty inch flow
control valve, 2) A thirty inch gate valve and, 3) a bypass valve. The 30 inch flow control valve
is the primary valve used to regulate the flow of water into the Cachuma Project conveyance
system. This primary valve requires regular service pursuant to the Standing Operating
Procedures of the USBR. The operation of the NPE is pivotal to providing service and
maintenance of these valves. The following information provides a short history of the NPE:

Structure of the NPE is essentially the same as originally constructed in 1956. While it
cannot be stated with certainty, it appears the structural components of the NPE appear to
be unchanged since construction (concrete structure of the building, shaft and car).
Records of maintenance prior to 2000 either do not exist or in the archives.

From 2000 to the present service and numerous repairs have been conducted primarily by
Republic.

Republic has provided contractual service of the NPE for approximately 27 years.

It long been recognized the NPE does not meet current seismic structural standards.

In May 2012, two COMB staff were stranded at the bottom of the shaft and had to exit
the car through the ceiling and climb the stairs to the top of the shaft. This event, along
with other known problems and recent failures precipitated USBR review of the NPE as
part of their special inspection.

USBR disclosed their findings verbally in December 2012, and in writing in a draft report
in February 2013, a subsequent draft report in April 2013, and a final report in May of
2013. Those findings specifically noted safety concerns with the NPE.

The NPE elevator is permitted to operate by the State of California. The current permit
has expired. Republic provided communication stated in early January of 2013, the State
of California’s responsible agency is “short of manpower and they will send an elevator
inspector as soon as possible”. As of today, no known State of California inspection has
occurred.

Pursuant to a request for a comprehensive review from COMB, In February 2013,
Republic accomplished the review and noted NPE equipment that needed immediate
attention and provided a proposal in response.

RCB Elevator Consulting noted, among numerous other issues, in their April 24, 2013,
Phase 1 evaluation of the NPE, “extensive corroding of the counterweight frame is the
most serious and potentially hazardous of the elevator corrosion problem”.

During June of 2013, based on comments in the USBR report, safety procedures were
instituted for use of the NPE.

Following the review of existing documents and various discussions, Randall Ward,
during his first week as General Manager, determined he had no basis for continuing to
allow COMB staff or any other individual to use the NPE.

A summary of maintenance and repair activity from 2000 — 2013 is available for review.

Item #9
Page 16



Mission Statement:

“To provide a refiable source of water
o our member agencies in an efficient and cost effective
manner for the betfterment of life in our communities.”

DATE: August 26, 2013

General Manager Report

First month endeavors have included meeting with each Director, each water agency manager and general
manager in an effort to learn your and their thoughts regarding COMB operation and policy. Without
exception, each Director has spoken with candor and is without question engaged in COMB activities. | have
been impressed with each of your manager's interest in COMB and their dedication to the public interest. |
have met with each COMB division manager and each COMB staff member. 1t would be neglectful of me not
to provide the Board my perception that COMB retains a capable staff that evidences a sericus inferest in the
importance of COMB activities to the well-being of the people residing in the water districts we serve.
Additionally, | have nearly completed a tour of the project system. The ongoing process of becoming familiar

with the policies of your districts and COMB issues will require your continued comments, suggestions and
guidance.

o North Portal Elevator: Because of safety concerns, | have stopped the use of the elevator under
any circumstance. Abrigk, due to the inability to provide maintenance and service, is a flow control
valve pivotal to the operation of the project. Discussions with RCB have produced an interim
solution that involves stabilizing the counter weighis that are attributable to the most immediate
safely issue. Based on those discussions | have confracted with RCB fo engineer a short term
solution that will allfow use of the elevator solely for the purpose of providing maintenance to the flow
control valve. RCB has provided an acceptable level of assurance this solution will allow the safe
use of the elevator for limited maintenance purposes. The cost of producing the engineesring design
for this solution is § 3,850, The cost of fabricating and installing this engineered solution is unknown.
bwill continue to keep the Board apprised and involved as information becomes available.

¢ Crossing 1, Quiota Creek Project: The construction and bridge installation segment of this project
was competitively bid. Bid packages were required to be received by August 20, 2013, Two bids
were raceived and screenad for being responsive and responsible by a staff member of the
Montecito and a staff member of the Goleta Water District. Unfortunately, the iow bid was
determined to be unresponsive and the second bid significantly exceeded the amount available for
the project. it is my intent to re-advertise the contract as soon as possible.

« Emergency Action Plan: The Bureau of Reclamation has provided COMB with completad copies
of their recently issued "Emergency Action Plan” (EAP) for distribution to COMB member agencies
and Santa Barbara County. Prior to release of the plan to COMB member agencies and the County
the Bureau requires COMB fo provide fraining on the EAPs structure and, for securily purposes, a
signed statement of nondisclosure.  Training sessions will be conducted during September. The
purpose of the plan is o provide a coordinated response to an unusual or emergency situation at
one or more project faciliies. The EAPs fundamental priorities are:

1. Life Safety

2. incident Siabilization

3. Preservation of Property and Environment
4. Recovery/Restoration of Facility Operations

Reap :f/uy‘ﬁ

General Manager

City of Santu Barbare - Goleta Water District - Montecito Water District
Carpinteria Valley Water District  Santa Yaez River Water Conservation District, Tmprovement District #1
General Monager - Rundall M, Ward, M.B.A. lterm #10

Page 1



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM
Date: August 26, 2013
Submitted by: Tim Robinson and Scott

Volan

Approved by: | Randy Ward

SUBJECT: Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Restoration Program

SUMMARY:

This oak tree memorandum reflects maintenance completed since the beginning of this Fiscal Year
(711113); tasks completed in June were included for reference (Table 1). Labor and expenses for the
entire fiscal year (July 2013 - June 2014) as well as water usage will be tracked but not reported as
recommended by the COMB Board ad hoc Oak Tree Program Committee. COMB staff continues to rely
on the Fisheries Division seasonal employees to conduct the majority of oak tree work in the field. For the
month of July, irrigation was conducted for all oaks as needed at Storke Flat as well as for the Year 5
oaks at the Bradbury Dam site. In the first half of August, the Year 1 and Year 2 oak trees at Storke Fiat

were irrigated as needed. Cage and road (potholing) maintenance at Storke Flat is in progress for the
current month.

Table 1: Cachuma Oak Tree Program completed tasks since 7/1/13; June tasks were included for
reference.

Oak Year Class Completed Tasks
Jun 2013 Jul 2013 Aug 2013
Year 6 Oaks (2010-2011) : Cage maintenance Irrigated Cage maintenance
Irrigated Hand weeded  ;Road maintenance
' Year 5 Oaks (2009-2010) trrigated Irrigated
| Year 4 Oaks (2008-2009) Irrigated
Year 3 Oaks (2007-2008) Irrigated ‘
Year 2 Oaks (2006-2007) Irrigated Irrigated* | jrrigated*
_ Cage maintenance
Road maintenance
Year 1 Oaks {2005-2006) Irrigated irrigated* Irrigated™®
Cage maintenance
; Road maintenance
*Valley oaks and trees under 4’ in height

ltem # 11

oy A
Page™




FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Tracked but not included.

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:
N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

N/A

COMMITTEE STATUS:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
For Board information only.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

ltem # 11

o) £y,
Page2




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

MEMORANDUM
DATE: August 26, 2013
TO: Randall Ward, General Manager
FROM: David Baum, Engineering/Operations Division Manager
RE: ENGINEERING & OPERATIONS REPORT

Field Mapplet Software (Maintenance Management Software)
Presentation by Megan Emami

Field Mapplet is a custom made Maintenance Management System that tracks work that needs
to be completed and work that has been completed. :

There are four facets to COMB's Field Mapplet: Redlining, USA Dig-Alerts, structure inspection
and structure rehab.

Redlining allows the operations crew to conduct field inventory of Cachuma Project facilities.
Not all structures had been documented in COMB's Geographic Information Systems (GIS).
During the development of Field Mapplet, and COMB's GIS, staff went through as-built drawings
to conduct an inventory on what assets are in the system. With the redlining feature, any asset
which may have been missed during inventory can be documented in the field. Redlining also
allows field reconfigurations to be documented.

USA Dig-Alert is a service used by anyone performing excavation. This service notifies
surrounding utilities of the work so they can mark their facilities. Normally, Dig-Alerts come
through an e-mail with an address and information on what work is being performed. Field

Mapplet takes these emails and maps the location of each Dig-Alert on an overlay with COMB's
facilities.

Structure inspection is utilized for COMB’s Maintenance Management. COMB must perform an
inspection and exercise every valve once a year. Structure Inspection consists of a form that
documents access to the facilities, whether the confined space sign and structure number are
legible, who surveyed the structure on what date, the depth of the structure, if there was water
in the structure, what minor repairs were made during the inspection, any additional work that is
needed, and the condition of the exterior, ventilation screens, ladder rungs, access lid, and roof
joints. Pictures are uploaded and attached to the form.

Structure rehab documents parts that are replaced, relocated or added to each structure.
Structures contain air valves, blow offs, manholes, turnouts and meters. Each asset contains
different parts and differs in potential repair work that could be needed. Developing our GIS
along with Field Mapplet, the system recognizes what each asset is. The Structure Rehab form
is specifically developed for the asset that is selected. Field Mapplet records when the work was
started and completed and what was replaced or added during the rehab project.

ltem #12
Page 1



Field Mapplet is able to show what work has been assigned to each staff member and keeps
track of what has been completed along with what needs to be completed. Field Mapplet has
been installed on two laptops which are taken into the field. The software does not need an
internet connection to be able to document what is being done or read what work has been
assigned for the day. At the end of each day the laptops are connected to the internet and
synced to upload the information. Field Mapplet also generates reports on Redlines and USA
Dig-Alerts to provide an overview on what has been accomplished. These reports can be
generated and viewed on any computer with a web browser.

Cachuma Project Rehabilitation

Air valve replacement/relocation

Four air valves in the Montecito Reach will be replaced and relocated above grade. Work is
scheduled for this coming January when water demand is low. Project will require taking
approximately six and a half miles of the South Coast Conduit (SCC) and draining
approximately four and a half miles of the SCC for approximately three days. Valves and piping

will be replaced at the same time. Contract Documents are scheduled to be available for
competitive bidding October 1, 2013.

Blow-off rehabilitation

Five blow-offs will be rehabilitated at the same time the air valves are being replaced, to take
advantage of the shutdown.

Operations

To ensure reliability, the Operation and Maintenance staff performs routine maintenance on
COMB's Distribution and Storage System. Staff continually works to improve the system as well
as making sure any deficiencies are addressed.

Lake Cachuma Operations

The total flow from Lake Cachuma into the Tecolote Tunnel for May was 2,977.7 acre-feet for
an average daily flow of 96 acre-feet. The lake elevation was 726.11 feet at the beginning of the
month and 724.28 feet at the end. The storage change decreased 4,175 acre-feet. 216.2 acre-
feet of CCWA water was wheeled through to Cachuma Project facilities.

USBR

2012 USBR Special Inspection Report
COMB received the Final 2012 USBR Special Inspection Report and, in accordance with their

request, COMB has submitted a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) to USBR addressing their
Category 1 recommendations.

Tecolote Tunnel Inspection

USBR and COMB walked the length of the 6.2 mile long Tecolote Tunnel last December.
COMB received a DRAFT Report from USBR assessing the condition of the interior of the
tunnel asked COMB to review and comment. COMB performed their review and provided
comment to USBR. The final USBR report is expected in this month.

Comprehensive Facility Review of Dams:
USBR Comprehensive Facility Review (CFR) of Dams took place February 19-21, 2013.

Cachuma Project CFRs are performed every six years by USBR representatives. USBR will be
issuing a report (timing unknown).

ltem #12
Page 2



Sheffield Tunnel Inspection

COMB, in conjunction with USBR, performed an inspection of the Sheffield Tunnel in July. The
condition of the lining of the tunnel and the exterior of the conduit was evaluated. USBR will be
issuing a report (timing unknown).

Operation and Maintenance Activities

It is the responsibility of COMB Staff to operate and maintain the Project works, and deliver and
utilize Project water in compliance with the water service contract and terms of the Contract for
the Transfer of the Operation and Maintenance of the Cachuma Project Works. These
responsibilities are detailed in the Standing Operating Procedures (SOP) issued by USBR in
1981 and periodically revised. COMB Staff continues to perform these duties as outlined.

Every six years USBR performs a comprehensive review of all Cachuma Projects facilities and
issues recommendations for work, not included in the SOP, to be performed by COMB.
Typically these tasks are non-recurring. COMB has prepared a tentative schedule and is
currently performing several of these tasks.

ltem #12
Page 3



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 26, 2013

TO: Randy Ward, General Manager

FROM: Tim Robinson, Fisheries Division Manager
RE: MONTHLY FISHERIES DIVISION REPORT

In compliance with the 2000 Cachuma Project Biological Opinion (BO) and as described in the
2004 Lower Santa Ynez River Fish Management Plan (FMP) and the Monitoring Program in the
2000 Revised Biological Assessment (BA), the Cachuma Project Biology Staff (CPBS) conducts
routine monitoring of steelhead/rainbow trout and their habitat on the Lower Santa Ynez River
(LSYR) below Bradbury Dam. The following is a list of activities carried out by CPBS since the last
COMB Board meeting that has been broken out by categories.

LSYR Steelhead Monitoring Elements

Thermograph Network:

The thermograph network is deployed at the beginning of April and picked up at the end of
December to record water temperatures at all designated locations within the LSYR mainstem and
several tributaries. All thermographs have been deployed in the LSYR mainstem and its tributaries
for the dry season. Thermographs are downloaded monthly and the results are summarized in the
Annual Monitoring Report.

Lake Profiles:

Lake Cachuma water quality measurements (temperature, dissolved oxygen concentration and
total dissolved solids) at one meter intervals from the surface to the bottom of the lake (Lake
Profile) are taken once a month from April through December at the Hilton Creek Watering System
(HCWS) intake barge. This is considered to be at or near the deepest point in the lake and allows
for monitoring of lake stratification, water quality conditions at the intake level for the HCWS and
lake-turnoff. ‘

Cachuma Lake QOak Tree Restoration Program:

COMB staff, with guidance from the hired professional arborist, continues to implement the
Program and have successfully conducted all management actions as required. An update of the
project is provided in a separate Board memo.

Tributary Project Updates
Quiota Creek Crossing 1: All construction funds for this project have been secured: a
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) Fisheries Restoration Grant Program
(FRGP) grant for $521,141, a California Wildlife Conservation Board (WCB) grant for
$150,000, and a COMB construction match for $50,000. All landowners have been informed
about the pending project. The re-advertising of the construction proposal is in process
following the previous bidder issues discussed in the General Manager’s Report.

Quiota Creek Crossing 0: No further progress has been made.

Quiota Creek Crossing 8: No further progress has been made.

ltem #13
Page 1



Rancho Salsipuedes Cattle Exclusionary Fencing and Off-Channel Watering: The
landowner is reviewing the access agreement and the project has been delayed until the fall.

Salsipuedes Creek — Jalama Road Fish Ladder: No further progress has been made.

Surcharge Water Accounting

The following table summarizes the amount of Surcharge water used to date from each of the
three accounts at the end of last month (Table 1). All numbers come from Reclamation’s Daily
Operations Report. The start time for the use of the Surcharge Water Accounts was 5/27/11, or the
last day of full surcharge. As of May 2012, all of the Fish Rearing account waters have been used
and we are now using Project Yield to meet BO target flows. The amount of water used during July
was 265.1 acre-feet. A WR 89-18 release began on 7/15/13 at 8:15 AM, during these releases no
Fish Rearing releases are debited. Subtracted from the Project Yield total was the Adaptive
Management Account (AMA) release of 35 acre-feet in October 2012 that was called for by the
Adaptive Management Committee (AMC). A second AMA release was called for by the AMC and
began in June of 2013; the release amounts will be reflected in next month’s Fisheries Report once
Reclamation determines the amount of AMA water used.

Table 1: Summary of the surcharge water accounting and use of Project Yield.

Accounts* ‘Allocation  Amount Used** Amount Remaining

~ Units: (acre-feet) @ (acre-feet) {acre-feet)
. FishPassage 3200 o ... 320
Adaptive Management 50 3 485
Fish Rearing™* 5242 5242 O
Project Yield f 8,121 ;
Total: 8,942 13,398 3,665
?;‘*‘,,‘Originguy was 9,200 and as of 2008 it is 8,942. *

** Values as of 7/31/13. |

 This water is for meeting required target flows. This is not an oficial account
_andis what remains after sublracting the other two accounts.

Reporting / Outreach / Training
Reporting: The 2011 Annual Monitoring Report has been submitted to Reclamation. Staff

continues to work on the 2012 Annual Monitoring Report that will be sent to the Science Review
Team soon.

Outreach and Training: Staff continues to work with Quiota Creek watershed landowners on a
variety of fisheries issues. Staff attended the ESRI International Users’ Conference in San Diego in
July and gave two presentations entitled “Habitat/Passage Impediment Tracking of Endangered
Southern Steelhead, Santa Ynez River” and “GIS Database Development for Water Utility
Management”.
Consultant Activity Summary (February):
HDR Fisheries Design Center (Mike Garello) — Design work for Quiota Creek Crossings 0+1.
Stetson Engineers (Ali Shahroody) — Santa Ynez River hydrological analyses.

Cardno ENTRIX (Jean Baldrige) — BO compliance tasks and support.

Item #13
Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION AND M

AINTEMNANCE BOARD
FORJULY 2013

METERED USE REPORT ¥
LATERAL/ ACKREFEET TLATERAYY ACRETEET
STATION MAME METERED [STATION MNAME METERED
CARPINTERIA WATER BISTRICT GOLETA WATER DISTRICT
Ortega South Flow 574.21 18+62 G. WEST 270.13
Rsegra Road {1363 (78+00 Corona Del Mar FILTER Plant 1,044.24
Lambert Road (937 1122420 STOW RANCH 0.03
Toro Canyon {10600 Bishop Ranch {Wynmark)(Water Rights) 0.00
Raytheon (SWP) (Warren Act Contract) 3.00
GWD SWP CREDIT (Warren Act Contract) 0.00
TOTAL 1,314.46
MONTECITO WATER DISTRICT
26079 BAREERTPALS 99.53
386+65 MWD YARD 170.04
487+07 VALLEY CLUB 16.83
499+65 E. VALLEY-ROMERO PUMP 177.23
399+27 TORO CANYON 10.60
310495 ORTEGA CONTROL 29.32
510+95 MWD PUMP (WD) 25.01
526+43 ASEGRARD 1.36
355+80 CO.YARD 0.00
583+00 LAMBERTRD 9.57
MWD SWP CREDIT (Warren Act Contract) 0.00
TOTAL 539.48
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
ATER INFLOW 265321
" 50. FLOW (138375
Gibralter PENSTOCK {64.39)
Sheffield SHEF LIFT 266.16
STANWOOD MTR TO 5CC-¢eredit 0.00
La Cumbre Mutual (SWPY Warren Act) {35.62)
TOTAL 143561
o Y RIVER WIR CONBIRT., 1
COUNTY PARK, ETC 10.25
TOTAL 18975
BREAKDOWN OF DELIVERIES BY TYPE:
STATE WTR CRD 0.06 STATE WTR DELIVERED TO LAKE 0.00
TOTAL 552.68 STATE WATER TO SOUTH COAST (including fFom storage) {39.062)
Note: BIsHUP HANCH DIVERSION (RS
COMB meter reads were taken on 7/31/2013 METERED DIVERSION 3,848.43
ltem #14a

Page 1



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENAMCE BOARD

WATER PRODUCTION AND WATER USE REPORT

12-13 ENTITLEMENT

FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2013 AND THE WATER YEAR TO DATE

(Al in rounded Acre Fest)

MONTH Yih
TOTAL TOTAL
WATER PRODUCTION:
Cachuma Lake (Tee. Diversion) 3,471 24,118
Tecolote Tunnel Infiltration 367 1,476
Glen Anne Reservoir 0 0
Cachuma Lake (County Park) 10 57
State Water Diversion Credit 4 409
Bishop Ranch Diversion 0 100
Meter Reads 3,848 24,103
So. Coast Storsge gain/(loss) {4) 5
Totat Production 3,848 25,651
Total Deliveries 3,844 24,617
Unaceounted-for 3 1,034
% Unaccounted-for 0.09% 4.03%
CWD 8B CITY MWD CVWD  SYRWCD TOTAL
WATER USE: LD, #1
M&l 843 1,432 469 273 10 3,029
Agricultural 472 70 277 819
TOTAL FOR MONTH ' 1314 1432 339 553 10 3,848
Same Mo/prev. yr 1,365 876 312 487 13 3,253
M&L Y10 date 7055 8,566 2,989 1,497 56 20,163
Ag. Yrio date 2,208 0 415 1,489 0 4,112
TOTALYTD 9,267 3,566 3,404 2,987 56 24,275
USAGE % YTD 87.3% 61.9% 80.4% 76.3% 3.8% 71.2%
Previous Year/YTD 8,516 7.17% 2,638 2,721 35 22,126
Evaporation ¢ 0 0 g 0 G
Evaporation, ¥YTD 6 123 12 2 0 153
Entitlement 9,322 8,277 2,651 2,813 2,651 25,714
Carryover 879 5,715 1,099 931 3 8,627
Carryover Balances Spilled YTD 0 & 0 0 0 0
Surplus™ 0 ¢ 0 O 0 0
State Water Exchange” 421 41 518 183 (1,165} 0
Transfers/Adjustment * 0 0 (18 0 0 {18)
Passthrough H2(%* 0 0 O 0 0 0
TOTAL AVAILABLE 10,622 14,033 4,250 3,929 1,489 34,323
REMAINING BALANCE 1,353 5,344 834 938 1,433 9,855
#¥ City is operating under pass through mode dedlared November 2008,
State Waler Deliveries for July o Lake Cachuma were: MWD 0 AF; CVWD 0 AF
GWD 0 AF(Morehart 0 AF), City of 8.B. 0 AF, and LaCumbre 0 AF: (Ratheon 0 AF).
* Par SWP Exchangs Agnmt GWD recelvad 148 AF; MWD received 187 AF;
Cily of SB recsivad 0 AF; and CVWD received 85 AF from 1D#1 in July 2013,
¥ Adi to meler reads - MWD Valley Club - WY 2013
tem #14a

Page 2




GLEN ANNIE RESERVOIR
Capacily at 385 elevation:
Capacily at sill of intake at 334 elevation:
Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

LAURO RESERVOIR
Capacily at 549" elevation:
Capacity st sill of intake at 512" elevatlion:
Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

ORTEGA RESERVOIR
Capacity at 480" glevation:
Capacity at outlet at elevation 440"
Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storags
CARPINTERIA RESERVOIR
Capacity at 384" elevation:
Capacily at outlet elavation 362"
Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

TOTAL STORAGE IN RESERVOIR
Change in Storage
CACHUMA RESERVOIR®

Capacity at 750 elevation:
Capacity at sill of tunnel 660 elevation:

£

e

Stage of Reservolr Elevation
Water in Storage

Area

Evaporation

Inflow

Downsiream Release WR8918
Fish Release

Cutlet

Spill/Seismic Release

State Project Water

Change in Storage

Tecolote Diversion

Rainfall: Month: .00 Season:

NTEMNANCE BOARD

518 Acre Fest
21 Acre Feet

348.00 Feet
94.74 Acre Feet

800 Acre Fest
84.39 Acre Fest

547 50 Feet
560.07 Acre Fest

85 Acre Fest
O Acre Fest

450.20 Fest
28.97 Acre Feet

45 Acre Fast
0 Acre Fest

374.90 Feet
23.28 Acre Fest

613.31 Acre Feet
-4.23 Acre Feet

188,636 Acre Fest
25668 Acre Fest

717.8 Fest

106,762 AF
2,025

1,364.9 AF
19 AF
4221.0 AF
4232 AF
87.0 AF
0 AF
0 AF
-9,245 AF
3,470.6 AF

0.02 Percent of Normal: 200%

ltlem #14a
Page 3



LEB WLOL
m@w
Sy [
156 828 z5 z 0 0 inp 3
gLy .01 Gee z 0 o e B
£04L 2121 gLy Z 0 o Aepy o
2912 0g¥i G0L z g 0 sy &
PBGE 0881 #086 4 ] o Iy e
pegz 8021 20 Z 0 ] R
0y8z Zigt 8201 07 o £0E uep
o¥ee Ziet 704 £EL o ze8 a8Q
0¥Re F45:18 9204 Gt 0 Gie AON
0¥az z181 9701 809 0 208 =Te}
IEGT ay g oy PRIy {810, HIUoR
SHONVIVE DNINIVIEY
0 dag
0 finy
59 £e f4 GHLRE L e 0 o 0 6
¥E L A pEXE LG unp 0 0 o o
A Li L ZzwxE LA Aviy s} 0 Y o
o FAR L4 24U RO ady o 0 i} o
ol L L PLAAE L 12 0 0 0 0
0 qed ] 0 Bl 6Ll
0 uef 0 0 G- G4
0 a8 0 0 8- 62
0 AOM 0 0 PASES L4}
L2 Zi gl LoeXE L B0 4] 0 ipL ¥l
£18'% 008t £10'% L85 16 jeg uibag LRUOW iy 20 By A
BoL oY PR (534 18I EEN FINAIHOS INTHEND HALYM ZOVHOLS
SNOISIAZY ONY FTNCIHDS SHOISIATY ONY F1NUHHOS SNOISYIANCD
986'% 88yt 18¥'L L£6 gige oL
dag
By
266 142 GLE o 0 0 0 0 256 Lz §.T iy
818 a41 094 0 o 0 0 g 21e 4Gl 091 uip
o8y e v o 0 0 0 ] agy vz feorid Aepy
osw ovE 0Lz ] 0 ] o 0 oGy ove oLz idy
082 G521 G71 0 0 0 4 0 042 GCh r43 Bl=d i
ot ¥ 2 £8 5LE €02 202 3 [A%4 8 gz e
0 0 0 ¥4 G 0¢ 871 3 821 2 G/ uep
0 0 g £l 62 £y a2y i 44 £l 62 o8(]
0 0 0 gLl il £8E LEE 4 LEZ gLl aiL} AON
) o 0 TAN L¥l £2¢ gig L gie ziL Pl 186 £l8e 120
{2j0., Joy 3 Ay 120 {BJOL M denag 12101 Iy kT leoj SNGIRIG HEBA UBLNG oy
18 8-aI0Y UoHEDO)Y | JEETE Y 198810y lsaoRuED  BInRPeYDS
INSWETUANS LNSYMND OL SITONYIVE HIADANYD OL THEN HBLYM TVL0L panoiddy
Og9HYHD OESN MELYM CEOHYHI GEEN MALYM
VeI g oD Ag pajepdn yseT

SLIOE/G 10 £1/L/01 RS J0BJUDD

s Joe Aeiea eusjurhies

JAHIUSY IDRIUOD

Z08L-HSLIE LOVHANOD - LOBFOHd VINHOVYD
QSN WALV J0 AMVAINNS

Page 4



£6E'L Wi0oL
deg
By

2581 129 (A7 0 0 8] wr
0282 0¥0L gy 0 4 ¢} unp
g15€e b 748 yEeE 0 0 0 Aey
LOGY oeal LEBE g G O sy
SEVE g1l jarasiy 0 0 g TN
1118 18961 giey 0 0 Y LER]
£189 6207 6L 0 0 0 uep
VA7 0802 eLbe 0 0 0 08{]
LEog GLig 9i6g 0 0 0 ADN
2008 LIEZ 1898 g g 0 WO

felo L ov e 0y e #ol YILOW

SHONYIVE SRINIYIREY

0 dag
4] fny
vl £y §6 BriaRg G i i} 0
74 gL 08 QLN LR uny 0 0
9% 8t A% SR LE Asiy ¢} o
&5 L 44 £H#XE LU0 ity 4] o
(A 9 jerd CERXT LA Jein 0 0
g R 4] 0
0 uep O G
] 28] 0 g
0 AON o] 0
28 i v 2o+XE LHAL B0 0 1]
728’8 0er'z o8’ 162 829 818 [eg wiisy UIUOW By s

BloL Y g 0y e 2oL FNAIHDS LNIHHNO

SNOISIAEY ONY SHINAHEHDS SNOIBHIANOD
vt q0e'e 950°2 648

GLe'L [4A4 394 0 {1 0 0 0 GLEL [AAY 24
¥L0°L 8174 145 4] 0 0 0 0 PLO'L 08e 8
660'L 98 372 0 i} g 0 ¢ 5604 225 Gel
126 LBL el 0 0 4} 0 0 L28 161 oL
YLl 251 228 4 o Y 0 4 ¥LL 25t 228
617281 8 744 0 0 0 g 0 0¥8 22 9.8
948 e L2g g 4 Y o 0 jalete] 23 Lzg
866 gg €08 4] Y g 4] 0 845 g% €08
L8 96% §il 0 0 0 0 0 Li8 96T GLL
8¢ LOL GLT FA 4 ge9 74 L8 o) 1T €6 208 818

1B L 1By 19 by 1% N BejoL AT deay [ENTN By 19N 189 4, SNOIAOL

1861-2i0Y UORBIOY | 18aAI0Y 108}-9i0Y Janohlien
JMSNETLLLNG LNEREN0 0L SHONYIVE HEAOAMYEYD OL CEHSN HELYM TYIOL
CEONYHD G380 HILYM CEOUYHD I8N HELYM
SULEIL B W00 Ag pajepdn jse

SLIOB/B "0} Z1/H/0L BB A JOBIUCD

OISO LRE BISI00)

Lo o]

i

b g e S v e e T o T i o}

53
<,

D DO D DD DO

R

item #14a
Page 5

HALYM FOVHOLS

2286

fAxe

SRBA WBLND
SNpIYSS
panciddy

oL

dog
By

nr
unp
Aepg
Jdy
BN
a8
ugp
98]
AON
10

YILOWNY

AU PpeAueD

Z08L-MGLI# LOVHLINGD - LOEIOMd VIINHOYD
GESN HILVM 40 AMVIIING



ltem #14a
Page 6

p
&
by

.

PR

i

R4
WALV ZOVHOLS

LG9E oy,
dog
finy

ny

qed
uep
081
AN
L6468 100
JBD A JRUNGY
QNPBYLG
paaoiddy

o

288 WIOL
dag
Briy
E8 18l L98 0 3 0 ne
PLLL 84 0L 0 L 0 unp
9%l TrA LGelL ¢} L 0 Aepy
8Ll 9L LESL 0 L s} sy
(11 ¥ad £z 1861 0 A 0 g
G167 182 bage 0 L ¢ qag
2682 592 L2¥E 0 74 8L uep
2692 gag FXAZA 4] 152 L6E 280
2687 G9¢ L2¥E 0 9ee Gee ADN
ZB8e §82 Le¥e 0 929 929 120
0L by R824 By e {2104, YILOW
SHONYIVE ONINIYIEY
0 deg
0 By
16 Lid 9z FELXE L0 mne o 0
€01 G 48 COLHRE LHQ! ung o Iy
$9 g £5 O+XE LEOL AR o o
g6 G 29 fpe peal a1l GG KBIBA BL 2L+ 7 0L+X3 LHOI sy o )
e ¥ 8¢ B LA BN i} 0
4] god 0 4]
o uep 0O o]
0 2801 o] i}
0 ADN 4] I
54 84 Lp+XE L 100 o 0
169'2 597 g8e'e g B60°1 BEBO'L j2g uibsg HIUoN by e
{e1o ] 10y RN by X 2101 FINUIHOS INSHUND
SNOISIARY ONY HINCEHOS SNOISYHANOD
LOV'E gLy 896’2 8601
8e4 0L 59F 0 0 i} 0 0 688 0L 59y
96¢ £o 5EE 4] 0 0 0 0 968 £8 GEe
£6E b4 See 4] 0 0 0 0 £6¢ 84 gee
Gov Ly gLy ] 0 O 0 0 )4 iy Ly
8ke 4% gie 0 g 0 0 0 144 28 9ie
Lit i 29l 9 LL 84 2L 0 4T 174 PEZ
0 0 0 ¢l 091 il il 3 Lt st gt
g 0 0 L 8l Gi ¥8 L g L LL
0 0 0 8 €82 L67 882 Z 882 8 B
g 0 ¢] £l o0y £L¥ Gov g G9¥ 24 68 6601
1801 10 19 W oy 1N 10, Lls] denzy B0 iy EX 1205, SPOMRIG
jEBaInyY UDRESDIY | 188}-8i0y [EETETY Janohuen
JNEWETLLNE LNEYENO OL SHINYIVE HEAOANHYD 0L GRS WHELYM IVLOL
GHOHYHD U380 HALYM CHOUYHD 380 JaLvn
eLLSIL ‘g WO D Ag pejepdn 3se7

£1/06/6 01 EL/L01 BBA JOBRUCD

JOLSI JERA) ONDSIUON Apug weauoD

ZOBL-NGH# LOVHLINGD - LOHAOMd YINHOVD
JHESN WELYM J0 AUYINIANS



£pe'e WLOL
dag
Sy
£PES 0 EVES 0 0 0 g
G249 ¢ G449 6] 0 0 unp
L8 o LLOB 0 o o Aryy
g1 & gieg G 808 jeine] ady
BLER 0 BiEs 0 LBEL 86EL e
giee a gLe8 0 91z 4121 G
gieg a gLER 5 LG0T 2808 ue
8LE8 a #Len 4] 98.€ 8848 S8
gLE8 a FLER G 98Ly 98i¥ AGN
2Le8 0 21e8 4] ZRoY [Atg 00
et i 4 I i BIoL WO
SHONYIVE ONINIYNEY
a tog
4] By
0 Hados YADD 898 = OrkE LR ng o
0 woal YADD 898 = G+NE L#) ung 0
4 Wodsl YD 895 = OHXE LA Aew o
0 Hadas YADD 988 = GXE LI idy 0
G uodal YADD 988 = 043 L#QI R 0
o Gad 0
o uep s
G ey C
G ADN 0
L a4 L Ll 120 0
LIE'R 2428 GLL'G GLL'G jeg uibeg HIUCH 1By
Bog s PR . e EIGL
SNOISIAEH ONV FTNCEHOS
PRERY a 998’8
g
0
Zer'L ] ZEV'L 0 0 ] 0 0 ZEP'L 0 zer'L
98zt 0 aee't 0 0 ¢ G 0 9ge’L 0 9eg’L
08 s 208 0 909 908 864 8 506 0 §06
0 0 0 0 164 LBZ LhL vl 124 0 LL4
0 4] 0 4] LBL EAZEN £64 ¥ (%73 0 £54
G G 0 0 388 988 a8 b 9.8 0 918
0 G i 0 PEL ¥EL G524 & Szl 0 GTL
0 ¢ 0 0 0oy oy 6% g ZBe 0 8¢
3 4] 1] a 96¥ a6y Biy it [i7AY O By
g Q 0 0 £E0°L £e0's L8656 |54 186 G 166
18501 Y 13N by e W 2ol Al dean 120 10y AL
10820y UOBESONY 169)-8I0Y 19880V
INZNETLLNG LINSYRND 0L SHONVIVE HEACAHYYD OL CHEEN HALYM TIVLGL
CHOHYHD F38N HILVM CIOMYHD 380 HALVM
eI

SLOEIE 10V ZL/1/0L B A JOBAUCS

3]
<
o
3
&
2
0 0 0
0 4] 0
0 o] 0
8] 0 4]
0 O 0
& 0 g
0 e 0
0 0 0
o 8] 4]
o 0 o]
19 1By R
AINAIHDS INZRMND HALYM FOVMOLS
SNOISHIANOD
SLiG 1428 B0
dag
vy
nye
g
Aryy
iy
lepy
ae
uef
=ls
AON
GLi8 1128 180
EBA SNOMBIL  JBBA BBLND HILOW
JBROALIETY  SIpayeg
paroiddy

L WO Ag pejepdn yseT

pipgieg Bleg Jo AND AT JORAUOCD

Z0BL-USLIE LOVYLINOD - LOAPOYd VINNHOVD
QHSN YILYM J0 AMVININNS

Page 7



SL/0EI6 10 ZL/LI0L LB A JOBIUOD

LAECH IS UONRAISEUOD) JSIRAA 40AIN 20U BlUBE

o
gev'L WLOL >
—
dag *
Brry m
£EYL 5071 62 0 o 0 g 2
£581 L0581 SLy 0 0 0 £ol ung -
9102 8591 58y D 0 s 91’6 Aepy
1222 9591 £96 ] o 0 oy Ky
LIET oLlL 149 ) o o 802 1B
£9v2 841 804 o i 0 542 a84
962 454 804 0 0 0 982 uer
Bb2 73 FAN ] 0 0 298 sac}
SivE pisas 814 0 8 0 08'e AON : .
6452 2844 Zzl 0 0 ¢ LEY B0 HON
oL iy ] By (A% ®ol Bes{] Ay yuow
SADNYIVE DNINIYINEY MUY ALNNOD
) dag
O Gy
{o1y) {zos) (soY) LBL-pAin-Rrap L-pMBIGE-PIMAT X3 g 0 0 0 0
{gie) (191} (v9) EO-PRWIOAIRL-PREPE-PMAD XY unp 0 0 i 0
yei) {69 {59) PO-pID-AIDIRr-PAB/ZE-DIMAY X3 ey 0 0 0 o
(B¥1) {zg) (p5) 04-PALIO-ANNEG-PB/EE-prAD X3 xdy 0 0 0 0
(58) (L) {29 Sp-PAL-ADREPMBIYL-pAAD X3 B 0 0 ] o
0 go ¢ o o o
0 uep 0 0 0 o
a 280 o 0 0 o
0 AON 0 0 0 o
(141 (1) {owL) LDl A0/ 20 pIB/LE-piAD X3 Ty 0 o g £
150 g8t £ £ g z jeg uibiag Huopy 1By 1N by 1w
[ by e By 1B W [T FINCEHDS LNFHHUND HILYM FOVHOLS
SNOIBIASY ANV JTHIZHOS SMNOISHIANGD
15 0 26 g 1582 [BIOL
] deg
0 By
hi o ot 0 o ] ¢ o ot 0 oL e
ot 0 Ok 0 G s] 0 ] oL 1] ot unyp
5 ] & g 0 0 0 o 5 Il 5 Aeing
b2 g ¥ 0 0 ] ] 0 ¥ 0 b sy
€ 0 e 0 I ] 0 0 E o £ Sy
€ g m o 0 0 o 0 £ 0 = Ga:
€ a e 0 g g 4] it £ Q b4 uep
g 0 8 o o 0 o 0 a ] g9 s8Q
¥ o t o 0 o 0 o 14 o ¥ AOI
L o L 0 £ £ £ 0 i 0 ¥ € L6087 bale}
{210 By 2 by 18N 18101, A Gen B0, 1By 12 W R SNOMBI  JEBAIUBLND uol
1B0-8I0Y 189810y 1Bapainy
ANSWETLILNG INSNHAD OL SEONYIVE HHAOANNYD OL QHESN HELYM WLOL sanohisen anpayog
CHOUYHD SN HELYM CUOHYHD 28N YALYM pasosddy
Thaets gwos g perepdn jsety
AU J0RAUDD

Z081-ME LR LOVHLNOD - LOSMO¥d YINHOYD
JHEEN YALYM 40 AMVININGS

Page 8



z60'6 WLOL
dag
By %
7686 veRe AT Z L ] 5201 jor =
ovieL {EQE GoL0L Z I G 0801 uny H
L0181 boj:ra £992Z1 2 L 0 G186 Aein e
LLOBY LBy 141541 FA L09 909 o'y dyf L
ZE0Z gevs 06451 4 9681 8681 29 Jepy =
L08eE LL48 492501 4 6912 g912 G647 494
£ELEZ 85856 PiELL 0T EARY [A523 852 uep
28482 P84 96841 £Ee LE0¥ el £6'6 283
9GEYE 6PEY L0b81 g8 225% 9Bg¥ 08¢ AON
LECSE 5029 2161 209 2084 9185 FA 4 [5le]
2oL by Pe I iy 18 W 1E101 pasn 'Y oy
SHONVIVE ONINIYINEY SMuV ALNNOD
0 0 0 [l ] 0 dag
& it ¢ O 4 i By
) (Gt Gy 0 0 ¢ e 0 g o 0
0 (101} L0L 0 ] 0 unp 0 0 ) 0
0 (¢e) gL 0 ] o Az 0 g ] 4]
(1) (8e) | ¥4 0 0 ] ddy 0 Il 0 ]
{0} {og} 0g ] 0 ] B 0 G 0 0
0 ] 0 ] 0 g 4844 ] 0 gLi- gt
0 0 0 o ] 0 uer 0 0 A Fas)
0 o ! 0 0 0 380 0 0 ze- zZ
0 i 0 0 0 ] AON ] 0 08~ 08
0 €8} L 0 0 1] ele} ] 0 La- %
PLLSE CIE'g LOp'sL 5811 ZEb'L LE9'8 feg ubey oy 1By 19N 1By 191
oL by IR W by ey B0 L, FINCHHOS INSYEND HILYM HDVHOLS
SNOISIAEY GNY ITHIOEHOS SNOISHEANDD
BLL VL Sl 59402 L1298 152 0L
o 0 deg
a 0 Briy
BpE'E 818 520 ] 0 0 g 0 a8t 8ig 8z0'e AT nr
FASIN 814 4567 0 ] b 0 ] 8e0'e Lg¥ GEG'E %re'R unf
PEE'E 09 ¥EO'L 0 $09 904 284 8 Z68'C 048 72eE %G8 Aeiny
bRt ¥B¥ 958" ] 164 L6 1L pi 1187 Piv £E1'E Yl L iy
Gi8' 808 950"t 0 194 194 £G4 #l trA A 608 8La's %bT' 9 ey
nes Z8 gvi 58 8.0'4 8911 §61°1 £i 588l (A yLg'L YRS a4
659 Ge $29 19 696 180" 1204 04 8894 ZoL pRG'L TS uap
poG 5 B80S 0z 108 128 815 g Z80°) G4 200 %gL'E 80
G165 952 814 £5L 998 0z0'L 866 4 £L8'E 0¥ 505°1 %igs AON
£0e L0t 94z 96y §12'2 L'z vz £6 Ze0'e 965 gey's %108 1298 yLiGe 00
5N 5y 19 W 10y 19w 2101 ALY Qm)w 18101 aty 19 % BEN JBOA SROIMGL] JBBA WRAND LIUOIN
188240y uonenolly i JEETREI Y JEETET o JaAoALIED  9NpBYDS
INSWETALLNG LNENEND OL SHINYIVE HIAQAMMYD OL QSN ¥ALVM TYLOL ponosddy
CHOYYHD (38N HALVA ONDMYHD GESN HALYM
SULEIL ‘W 0D Ag pajepdn ise
AaueBy Jojep o) RIBQIEH BIUES AU olUeD

£1/08/6 101 ZL/L/0L HBBA JORAUOD

081G LOVHINGD - LOBPONd YINNHOVD

GHSN WALV 40 AUVINIINE

Page 9



4]
<
—
=4
&
2
1] i o [} [ i} $OZ o 15 LT ] 0 0 0 2 ¢ £8L |0 0 €6t 10 0 0 [} 28y 18301
i 0 0 o o ¥ ] s} [+ i 0 0 0 0 0 o ¢ o 0 s} i ¢ 4 ¢ Jaquisoa
It} 0 0 i 4 0 0 ] ] o 0 o 0 0 0 o 0 0 o 0 0 4 O SEHUBACH
¢} 0 0 o 0 2} 0 0 0 0 &} ¢ 0 0 ] 0 0 ¢} 0 o 0 o o G SBGOPD
0 0 g 0 ¢ 0 0 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] [t} 0 0 0 ¢ 0 s 0 lsqusiisg
0 0 0 o 0 o 0 [ [y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 s} ¢ o] snbiny
s} 0 ] 0 o o o34 0 o 10 0 o 4 o 0 0 0 [ 0 0 o 0 o 0 App
[} 0 ¥ o ¢ 0 57 0 1A [T 0 0 0 0 o 14 [ 0 18 0 0 0 JAY aunp
0 ¢ [ 0 [ 0 oR 0 ¢ 08 0 0 0 0 0 0 el 0 0 ot 0 0 0 91z Aey
0 0 0 1 0 o} 0g 0 0 0B 0 0 o 0 ¢ ¢} 0 0 0 & 0 Y o [ iy
0 [ 0 0 0 o Gz ¢ Q 5% 0 0 o 0 ¢ 4 0 1} 0 0 0 0 0 5 yosely
s} ] o 0 0 0 1] 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 ] [ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 v Arenagey
[ 0 0 0 s 0 o o ¢ 0 0 I i} o ] 1} 0 o 0 0 0 s [y 0 Amnugp
0 0 o 0 0 ) 0 0 0 Y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 Y 0 ¥ P e
0T
05 O} [pBI0IG I8ROl 0% 01 (halllg jeneT] 01y 08 0] Hidg/Oent | pBIOLS BNET 0} DS OF [PRIOIS [BET O OF O PRIOIESYeT 04 D8 O nds pelojs e O MIN 01 OF 01 [pRIcig B3R O] EXVTOL HINOW
paB DTN PAIBQ B PAIBQ SASH PABQ § PAMEC SMIOT PABG ] PAIBG CARD DPARCQ § PAIBG E'S PARRG ) PARG Al QRN mzma.w jsuell  paEd GMAD PABG QuATTEG
{roem 2BUBYOXD IO LEQE OOAMAS 2pnioul jou 88001} ATTNO LEVOD HLNOS - ONLLNNODOV LOArOYHd HHLVM H1VLS gil0D
0 ] 0 v 0 PE 123 ] i} (520 1] 0 ] ] 0 4 o 4] 0 0 i 0 0 i £8% 18304,
i} o 0 0 0 0 o i) 0 fi 0 i 0 0 0 Q 0 i} 0 0 0 0 0 0 Jaqusnal]
0 0 [¢ 0 ¢ 0 05 0 o 0g 0 Q ¢ 0 o 0 0 8 0 ¢} 0 0 05 JBOUIBACN
0 0 0 0 0 0 8¢ 0 g {0 0 0 0 0 o ¢ 0 ¢ o v 0 G 0 0 BEOWE
s} i} o} ] 0 0 g¥ o 85 o0 10 o g o 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 O 0 001 saqusideg
[y 4 o ve ¢} 2 o% 0 0 0g o 0 0 ¢ o o 0 o} 0 0 0 0 0 ¥ Bnbny
0 ] 0 ¢ s} 0 0 4 ¢ 0 0 0 ¢ 0 o s} 0 ] 0 o 0 1} 0 ol A
0 0 [ 0 ] 0 a¢ 0 O og 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 9% sunp
o ] 0 0 [¢ 0 €7 0 ¢ ot 4 0 ] 0 0 i} 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 574 Aepy
0 0 a 1y i} a Gz 0 o 4 0 [ o 0 ¢ 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 ora fudy
0 ] 0 0 0 [ 0g ] 0 05 ¢ 0 s} 0 0 0 g 0 0 0 0 ¢ ¢ 05 Breai:iiy
o ¢} [ 0 o 0 g8 o 0 g1 0 0 0 Iy 0 0 0 ¢] 0 4 0 4] 0 g1 Aenigs g
i} ¢ 0 0 0 4] 0z 0 0 0z 0 0 [ il 0 ¢ o ] 4] 0 0 o 0 oz Agnuer
¢ g o 0 ] 0 0 ] o o iy ¢ o id 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 0 4 [ 4] P feg
FAR A
G 0} |peiols [eYET 0l D8 O [PRIaIS BNET 0 D8 O s /deAT pBIois BYET 0 D O [PSI0IS YT O D8 0 pRInigpien Ol DGOl ] HhS  jpRIOIS PYET O M 01 DS O [PRIOIS 18NET O1F IV Ok HINOW
pAIBC DT DAIBCL | PAIRG SASY PARG | PAIRG SAMWSTT DARG | PAIBG UMD PAIRQ L PARG E'S PAIRC L PARC Mdens Cpa namam isusll DPASCQ TMAD RAR(] CHATEO

(193 BBUBLOXS 10 L#al ‘GOMBAS 8PNl Jou $203) A'INO LSVOD HINOS - ONILNNOOOV LO3r0dd HELVAM HLVLE 80D

Page 10



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
U.8. BUREAU OF RECLAMATION-CACHUMA PROJECT-CALIFORNIA

AUGUST 2013 LAKE CACHUMA DAILY OPERATIONS RUN DATE: August 21, 2013
DAY . ELEV STORAGE ~ COMPUTED* CCWA PRECIPON ————— RELEASE - AF, ——— EVAP - PRECIP
ACRE-FEET INFLOW : INFLOW. RES. SURF, HILTON ' . AF, INCH INCHES
IN.-LAKE CHANGE. AF. “AF, AR, CTUNNEL 'CREEK ™ QUTLET SPILLWAY
717.80 106,762
1 71763 106,419 -343 23,7 0.0 0 84.1 152  184.0 6 360 .264 .00
2 71748 106,116 -303 15.3 0.0 0 1114 153 1510 0 408 300 .00
3 717.33 105,813 -303 6.3 0.0 0 1053 152 1480 0 408 300 .00
4 71718 105,510 -303 2.8 0.0 0 1035 152 1480 0 337 248 .00
5 717.05 105,248 262 25.3 0.0 0 85.4 153 147.0 0 395 292 .00
6 718.80 104,947 -301 4.4 0.0 0 1035 152  148.0 0 387 286 .00
7 71675 104,648 -299 14.2 0.0 0 1105 152  147.0 0 405 300 .00
8 716,61 104,369 279 21.9 0.0 0 1282 152  127.0 0 325 241 .00
9 716.46 104,069 -300 14,8 0.0 0 1323 15.1 127.0 0 404 300 .00
10 71633 103,810 -259 18.1 217 0 1222 15.4 124.7 0 388 274 .00
11 71621 103,570 240 -2.6 29.3 0 93.3 151 1243 0 340 258 .00
12 71610 103,351 219 14.8 29.4 0 88.4 151 124.4 0 353 .263 .00
13 71599 103,131 -220 23.0 20.4 0 1124 151 1084 0 368 275 .00
14 71588 102,914 217 9.8 29.3 0 1108 15.1 20.3 0 399 208 .00
15 71578 102,717 197 35.9 29.3 0 1121 15.0 92.3 0 428 320 .00
16 71567 102,500 217 31.8 29.4 0 1164 151 1025 0 442 33 .00
17 71555 102,264 -236 8.6 20.4 0 118 150 1044 0 428 .32 .00
18 71544 102,047 217 50.2 205 0 111 150 1315 0 391 204 .00
19 71532 101,810 237 11.3 206 0 90.1 150 1355 0 373 281 .00
20 71549 101,554 -256 6.1 29.5 0 1050 150 1348 0 370 279 .00
21 71505 101,278 276 6.0 20.5 0 1248 150 1355 0 364 275 .00
TOTAL (AF) .. .5484 . 2889 3453 02,2598 3175 02,7354 0. 8055 5995 .00
(AVG) 10376 . ‘ ~ :
COMMENTS: S

" COMPUTED INFLOW IS THE SUM OF CHANGE IN STORAGE, RELEASES, AND EVAPORATION MINUS PRECIP ON THE RESERVOIR SURFACE AND CCWA
INFLOW.

DATA BASED ON 24-HOUR PERIOD ENDING 0800.
INDICATED QUTLETS RELEASE INCLUDE ANY LEAKAGE AROUND GATES.

ltem #14b
Page 1



